
Lori A. Sbibinette

Comtnissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9564 1-800-804-0909

Fax:603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/bdas

August 11, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a Retroactive,
Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with the Contractor listed below in bold for the
provision of evidence-informed substance misuse prevention direct services to youth and their
parents and caregivers, by increasing the total price limitation by $128,010 from $4,180,896 to
$4,308,906 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2021 to June 30. 2022, effective
retroactive to June 30, 2021, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Other Funds
(Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs).

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below. t

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Number

Location Contract

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Contract

Amount

G&C Approval

Boys and
Gitis Club of

Greater

Salem

160066

Salem.
Nashua &

Souhegan
Valley

$1,086,844
$0

$1,086,844

0; 08/23/17,
Item #20

A1: 06/20/18,
Item #37

A2: 06/24/20,
Item #35

A3: 6/30/21.
Item #25

North

Country
Education

Services

154707

Northern

Grafton &

Coos County
$863,260

$0
$863,260

0: 08/23/17,
Item #20

A1: 06/20/18,
Item #37

A2: 06/24/20,
Item #35

A3: 6/30/21,
Item #25

New

Hampshire
Teen

Institute

166624 Statewide $1,190,422-

$0
$1,190,422

0: 06/21/17,;
Late Item B

A1: 06/20/18,
Item #37

A2: 06/24/20.
Item #35

A3: 6/30/20,

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communitiss and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Item #25

The Upper
Room

246053

■Rockingham
County &

Surrounding
Communities

$475,291

$0 $475,291

0: 06/21/17,
Late Item B
A1: 06/20/18,
Item #37
A2: 06/24/20,
Item #35
A3: 6/30/21,
Item #25

The Youth
Council

154886

Nashua North
& Nashua

South High
Schools

$565,079 $128,010 $693,089

0: 06/21/17,
Late Item B
A1: 06/20/18,
Item #37
A2: 06/24/20,
Item #35

Total: $4,180,896 $128,010 $4,308,906

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2022, with the
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

See attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive because the fully executed contract documents were not
received In time for Governor and Executive Council approval to prevent the current contract from
expiring. The Contractor was unable to obtain signatures on time for the contract documents due
to changes in key personnel including the Executive Director. This request is Sole Source
because the Department is seeking to extend the contract beyond the completion date and there
is no renewal option available. The Department is seeking to amend the existing contract on
behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs to continue supporting services
provided through this contract, which was originally funded by Senate Bill 533 of the 2016 Regular
Legislative Session. Further funding for these programs was approved by the Governor's
Commission on February 19, 2021, which did not leave sufficient time to procure for these
services before the existing contract expired.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing substance misuse prevention direct
services to youth and related programming for their parents and caregivers. The services provided
through these contracts target youth between 10 and 20 years of age who are at risk of engaging
in the misuse of alcohol and the illicit use of drugs. Risk factors Include youth experiencing poor
academic performance: behavioral problems at school or have dropped out of school;
involvement with the juvenile justice system; and children whose parents or caregivers are
engaged in the active misuse of alcohol and or illicit drugs.

Approximately 4,000 individuals will be served by all contracts from June 30, 2021
through June 30, 2022.

The goal of these contracted prevention programs is to prevent the onset and use of
alcohol and drugs and to increase parental and caregiver knowledge regarding the negative
effects that substance misuse has on their child(ren). improve parental and caregiver
communication skills, and Increase parental and caregiver monitoring of their child(ren)'s behavior
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and activities. These programs promote positive youth development with the goal of preventing
and reducing the misuse of alcohol, marijuana, prescription drugs, opioids, stimulants and other
drugs.

Each Contractor has chosen approved evidence-informed programs that include
education and counseling, and healthy activities that can be developed as alternatives to
engaging in the misuse of alcohol and drugs and other risky behaviors. Programs include
individual or group education and awareness about the risks and consequences of substance
misuse, assistance in helping youth acquire the skills necessary to resist negative peer pressure
for using alcohol or other drugs, engagement in the development and promotion of alternative
social activities, and developing healthy coping skills to deal with stressful circumstances in their
life at home or school. These programs also engage parents and caregivers to assist with the
skills to promote improved communication within the family about substance misuse.

All Contractors providing direct prevention services through these contracts are required
to establish ongoing working collaborative relationships with community-based organizations
including, health and social service agencies and schools, and the Regional Public Health
Network in their area. The Contractors are also required to conduct outreach to youth and their
parents and caregivers to make them aware of these services and how to access them.

The intended outcomes for participants include;

•  Increase in the perception of risk of substance use.

•  Increase in the use of at least two (2) new coping skills to manage stress.

•  Increase in parental communication regarding the risk and consequences
of adolescent substance use.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, approximately 4,000 youth
who are at high risk for developing a substance misuse disorder may not have access to
comprehensive substance misuse prevention services.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds w\\\ not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



Attachment A

Financial Details

05-9S-49-491510.2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE

SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

New Hampshire Teen Institute V#166624 PC #1056422

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified Budget

2017 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $107,744 $0 $107,744

Subtotal $107,744 $0 $107,744

The Upper Room V#174210 PO #1057461

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified Budget

2017 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $36,811 $0 $36,811

Sub-total $36,611 $0 $36,611

The Youth Council V#154886 PO #1056421

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified Budget

2017 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $50,103 $0 $50,103

Sub-total $50,103 $0 $50,103

Total SFY17 $194,658 $0 $194,658

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG 8. ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem V#160066 PO #1058002

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Tide Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified Budget

2018 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $220,892 $0 $220,892

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $216,488 $0 $216,486

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $216,488 $0 $216,488

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $216,488 $0 $216,488

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $216,488 $0 $216,488

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-total $1,086,844 $0 $1,086,644

New Hampshire Teen Institute V»166624 PO #1056422

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified Budget

2016 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $220,058 $0 $220,058

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $215,655 $0 $215,655

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $215,655 $0 $215,655

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $215,655 $0 $215,655

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $215,655 $0 $215,655

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc SO $0 $0

Sub-total $1,082,678 $0 $1,082,678

Anachment A

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 3
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North Country Education Services \/#l54707 PO #1058007

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account TiUe Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified Budget

2018 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $175,000 $0 $175,000

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $172,065 $0 $172,065

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $172,065 $0 $172,085

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $172,065 $0 $172,065

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $172,065 $0 $172,065

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc SO $0 $0

SulMotal $663,260 $0 $863,260

The Upper Room VI»174210 PO *1057461

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account TlUe Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified Budget

2018 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $90,044 $0 $90,044

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $67,109 $0 $87,109

2020 102-500734
Contracts tor Prog

Svc $87,109 $0 $87,109

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $87,109 $0 $87,109

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $87,109 $0 $87,109

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-total $438,480 $0 $438,480

The Youth Council V#154686 PO *1056421

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified Budget

2018 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $130,946 $0 $130,946

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $128,010 $0 $128,010

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $128,010 $0 $128,010

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $128,010 $0 $126,010

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $0 $128,010 $126,010

2022 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-total $514,976 $128,010 $642,986

Grand Total $4,180,896 $128,010 $4,308,906

Total t>y Year

Total SFY17 $194,658 $0 $194,658

Total SFY18 $836,940 $0 $636,940

Total SFY19 $819,327 $0 $819,327

Total SFY20 $819,327 $0 $819,327

Total SFY21 $819,327 $0 $819,327

Total SFY22 $691,317 $128,010 $819,327

54,180.8961'I Grand Total $128.0101 $4.308.t

Total t?y Agency

Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem V*160066 PO *1058002 $1,086,844 $0 $1,086,844

New Hampshire Teen Institute V*166624 PO *1056422 $1,190,422 $0 $1,190,422

North Countiv Gducation Services V#i 54707 PO *1058007 $863,260 $0 $863,260

The Upper Room V*174210 PO #1057461 $475,291 $0 $475,291

The Youth Council V*154886 PO *1056421 $565,079 $126,010 $693,089

Anachment A

Financial Detail
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Total by Agency I I K180.896 | $128.010 | K306,906 I

Attachment A

Financial Detail
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OocuSign Envelope 10: 964A40D3-CEF9-49B0-81F4-9406225AC^4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This 3"^ Amendment to the Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and The
Youth Council ("the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 112 W Pearl Street, Nashua, NH
03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017, (Late Item B), as amended on June 20, 2018, (Item #37), as amended June 24, 2020,
(Item #35), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval frdm the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$693,089

3. Add Exhibit A, Scope Of Services, Subsection 1.9, to read:

•1.9. The Contractor shall participate in monthly compliance meetings with the Department.

4.. Add Exhibit A, Scope Of Services, Subsection 1.10, to read:

1.10. The Department shall annually perform file reviews of the Contractor operations to ensure
compliance with applicable federal and state laws.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope Of Services, Subsection 1.11, to read:

1.11. The Department shall provide quarterly training and technical assistance to the Contractor.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent To Payment, Section 4, Subsection 4.1., to
read:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to the Department no
later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. The Contractor shall:

4.1.1. Ensure the invoice is presented in a form that is provided by the Department or Is
otherwise acceptable to the Department.

4.1.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred in the previous month.

4.1.3. Provide supporting documentation of authorized expenses that may include, but is
not limited to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable.

4.1:4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the
supporting documentation for authorized expenses, in order to initiate payment.

•OS

Cfc
RFP-2017-BDAS-01-SUBST-03-A03 The Youth Council Contractor Initials _ /nmi
A-S-1.0 Page 1 of4 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: 964A40D3-CEF9-4980-81F4-9406225ACEA4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

7. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent To Payment, Section 9, to read:

9. For the purposes of this Agreement;

9.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a subrecipient, in accordance with

2CFR 200.331.

8. Add Exhibit B-5 Budget- Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

(The remainder of page intentionally left blank)

— OS

Cfc
RFP-2017-BDAS-01-SUBST-03-A03 The Youth Council . Contractor Initials -
A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 4 Date^^3_?3^
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 964A40D3-CeF9-49B0-81 F4.9406225ACEA4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be retroactively effective to July 1,2021, subject to Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

8/11/2021

Date

—DocuSlgntd by:

ep?w3BCHc.ewj...
Name:^tja fox

Title: Director

8/10/2021

Date

The Youth Council
•DocuSlgnad by:

Name: faster
Title: Executive Director

RFP-2017-BDAS-01-SUBST-03-A03

A-S-1.0

The Youth Council

Page 3 of 4



.DocuSign Envelope ID: 964A40D3-CEF9-49B0-81F4-9406225ACEA4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DoeuSlgnvd by;

8/13/2021

•DSCA9

Date Name:^®^^®'"'"®
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date • Name:

Title:

RFP-2017-BDAS-01-SUBST-03-A03 The Youth Council

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4



Exhibit B-9 - Amendment eS

New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Services

_ - _ COMPLETE ON^UDGCT FORM FOR EACH SUDGgT PeRIOD
Instructions: Fill out the Directflndlrect columns only,for Contraetor_Shafe (If.ap'pllcablet and Funded by DHHS., EvefYllting else wtil iutomaticallY populate.

Contractor Name: The Youth Councd

Budpet Reeueel for Substance Misuae Prevention Direct Servkea

Budget Period: SPY 2022'

_Toial_Pf2J2m_CoiV
_ -t -- - Total —-r!

Cent/actorShare' Match Funded by DHH3 contract ehate

I. Tetai SetarnWaoes

1 Emclotll Benefa 22JS0,00

3. Contutantt

4. Eouidment:

Rerul

Reeeir end Wainienenee

PutcheeeiOetireciatien

5. Supples:

Phemtacv

a. Current Emenies

Telepnene

Poeiaoe

Subtcriotient
Audi and Uoal

Ittetaartee

Soerd Exoenecs

t1. Staff Etbicaben end Trainino

12. SuticenYacta/Aereenients

Mirea As A Percent of Deed ajso.oo

t2a.tHo.eo TmpTIoo
Mbect As A Percent of Obect

The YeuSi Ceufldi

RFP-20t 7-0OAS«1-6U8ST-O3-A03

Exfibii SS • Ameretnenl f)

Page t et 1

Coneaeter inittsH

.s(4^Zoz^
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE YOUTH COUNCIL is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 14, 1975. 1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 61917

Certificate Number: 0005380239

%

u.

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOE,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I Ith day of June A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



DocuSign Envelope ID; 964A40D3-CEF9-49BO-81F4-9406225ACEA4

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I  Karrie Benson-Boissonneault , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of The Youth Council
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 17 , 20 21 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Casey Caster. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of The Youth Council to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. A

Dated: 7/20/2021
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Karrie Benson-Boissonneault

Title: Secretary of.The Youth Council

Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 964A40D3-CEF9-4980-81F4-9406225ACEA4

ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/VYYY)

7/30/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementts).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03061

NAME^^^ Debra Amadel
F<ii: 603-689-7229 (ac. noI:

a^'ress: damadei(3|eatonberube.com
INSURERtS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJCi

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Comoanv 23850

INSURED YOUCO

The Youth Council, Inc
110-115 West Pearl Street
Nashua NH 03060

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER e

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1600557987 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
lift, TYPE OF INSURANCE nJwflivWi POLICYNUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS 1

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR

PHPK2290476 6/1B/2021 6/18/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC PREMISES (Fh n«aifrar»fial S 100.000

MED EXP (Any ona paraon) s s.ooo

PERSONAL a AOV INJURY S 1.000.000

GEFTL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3.000.000.

POLICY 1 1 |lOC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG S 3.000.000

s

A [ AUTOMOBILE LIABILrrr PHPK2290476 6/18/2021 6/18/2022
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddaml

$1,000,000

ANY AUTO

IHEDULED
rros
>N-OWNED
nos ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY .
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
AL

BODILY INJURY (Par accldant) s

X X NC
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accideni) $

$

A UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIA8

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHU677322S 6/18/2021 6/18/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

AGGREGATE $

1 DED 1 ^ 1 RETENTIONS ,r^ nrv* 1 $

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANYPROPRtETOft/PARTNER^XEamVE 1 j
0FFICER/MEM8EREXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) • " '
If yas, des^ba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

N/A

1

PER DTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L EAC:H ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $

A Profetiional

UaUUty •
PHPK2290476 6/18/2021 6/16/2022 Per Claim

Aggregate
$1,000,000
$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarfct Schadula. may ba attachad H mora apaca la raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state Of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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/KCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/VYYY)

06/17/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the
terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

AP INTEGO INSURANCE GROUP, LLC

375 Wooddiff Dr.

Suite 103

Fai^rt NY 14450

NAME*^^ AP Intego Insurance Group, LLC
P..V 888-289-2939

AM*RFss- cer1s@aDinteQ0.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC f

INSURER A Twin Citv Fire insurance Comoanv 29459

INSURED

The Youth Council Inc

112 West Pearl Street

Nashua NH 03060

INSURERS

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER P

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

<NSR
LTR TYPE OP INSURANCE

ADDC
INSR

SDBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
(MMfOPn^nrYl

POLICY exp
tMM/DOnTYY^ LIMITS

GENERAL LIABILITY

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE □OCCUR □□
EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES lEa occurreiKfll

MED EXP (Any on« parton)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

GENt AGGREGATE LIMfT APPUES PER:

I POLICY I I ■! I LOC
PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

□n
LIUIT

(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Par panon)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per acdd^t)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenll

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE
□□ EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILfTY y , „
ANY PROPRIETOWPARTNEFVEXECUTIVE
offk:emem6ER excluded?
(Marxlatory Irt NH)
If yes. desolbfl urxlar
PFSCRIPTION np OPFRATinNS h»lr.sv

□NfA□
V I WC STATU-

I TOR-T LIMITS
OTH-
-EE.

76WEGAF9D38 03/23/2021 03/23/2022 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT * 100.000
E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 100,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 500,000

□□
DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (Attach ACORO 101. AddlUonal Ramarfcs Schadula. If mort space It rapulred)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD'25 (2010/05)
® 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logq are registered marks of ACORO

IElear All
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AaORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/oonmnr)

06/17/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must bo endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the
terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

AP INTEGO INSURANCE GROUP, LLC

375 WoodcHff Dr.

Suite 103

Fairport NY 14450

NAME*^^ AP Intego Insurance Group, LLC
888-289-2939

ADDRpss- certs@aDinteflo.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC 9

INSURER A Twin Citv Fire Insurance Comoanv 29459

INSURED

The Youth Council Inc

112 West Pearl Street

Nashua NH 03060

INSURERS

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: . REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

|ADDL|SUBH| ^ POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
TYPE OF INSURANCE insr wyp POLICY NUMBER fMM/DD/YYYYl WM/DOnTYYl LIMITS

INSR
LTR

GENERAL LIA8ILITY

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CUMMS-MAOE □ OCCUR n□
EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMXGETO'RENTED
PREMISES (E« occuiT«fic«)

MED EXP (A^y ona peraon)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

GENt AGGREGATE LIMfT APPLIES PER:

aPOLICY
PRO-
JgCT LOC

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

uuir
{Ea acddani)AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYAUTO
ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

□□ BODILY INJURY (Par parsw)
SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddanO

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAJMS-MADE
□□ EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRlETOWPARTNEWEXECLfTIVE
OFFICE/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yea. deacrtbe under
nPSCRIPTION OP OPPRATIONS h»lnw

□ □
V I WC STATU-
^ I TORY LIMITS

TOth-
leL

76WEGAF9D38 03/23/2021 03/23/2022 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT » 100.000
E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 100.000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT S 500,000

□□
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (Anaeh ACORD 101. AddlUonal Ramarka Schedule. If more apace la required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2010/05)
©1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD-name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Clear All
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The Youth

■'Council
Mission Statement

Since 1974, The Youth Council has been a nonprofit community resource
for Greater Nashua, specializing in programs centered on youth guidance
and counseling. We offer counseling, student assistance, accountable
suspension, prevention, education and court diversion.

At The Youth Council our mission includes more than our youth, it includes
their families as well. The staff tailors programs and services to promote
healthy decision making and influence positive behavior. We believe in
order to have an emotionally thriving child it takes a collective effort, and
we are here to support that.
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The Youth

Gouncil

THE YOUTH COUNCIL, INC.

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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Melanson

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

The Youth Council, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Youth Council, Inc., which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles ge^|i^l,Y|gceptFd^lrv4her^^^^ States of
America; this includes the design, implementatipn'^Jm:i^maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentaUon^lIf^^^ statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud,'gijiijror.

Auditors' Responsibility

/Is?'
Our responsibility is to express an opinip^^^ these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordaiTce|witli auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standfrds|require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about SS#er the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing ̂ ^c^dures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the "financial sta{^?nts. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgrhent, including the assess'm.ent!i^pf the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraudopn^ In'making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control releva^gt|tp|the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order t6§||jgn audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpd^oiexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly^we^express no such opinion. An audit also includes

Wits.

Merrimack. New Hampshire

Andover, Massachusetts

Greenfield, Massachusetts

Ellsworth, Maine 800.282:2440 I melansoncpas.com
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Melanson

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The Youth Council, Inc. as of June 30, 2019 and the changes in net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

The financial statements of The Youth Council, Inc. for the year ended June 30, 2018 were
audited by another auditor, whose report dated August 6, 2019 expressed an unmodified audit
opinion on those financial statements. In our opinion, tfifisurri.maj^f^^ information
presented herein as of and for the year endedj^Jun^'30^2018 is consistent, |n all material
respects, with the audited financial statements;fr"oiTi"»which it has been derived.

■  ■ ■

Merrimack, New Hampshire

February 9, 2021

Ifif

mm
m.

m
%

ettt

...

K.,

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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THE YOUTH COUNCIL, INC.

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2019

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2018)

2019

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $500

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

' Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Current p>ortion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Long-term debt, net of current
Security deposits

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restricted

Tirhe restricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Without Donor

Restrictions

48,554

53,472

22,450

1,576

126,052

222,328

348,380

5,775

19,-574

9,540

34,889

306,077

1,932

308,009

5.482

5,482

With Donor

Restrictions

S  10,475

10,475

$  10,475

10,475

10,475

2019

Total

59,029

53,472

22,450

1,576

136,527

222,328

358,855

5,775

19,574

9,540

34,889

306,077

1,932

308,009

5,482

10,475

15,957

348,380 $  10,475 $ 358,855

2018

Total

53,877

90,080

11,225

9,683

164,865

237,604

402,469

7,795

16,325

9,781

33,901

314,871

2,582

317,453

39,890

51,115

402,469.

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

3
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THE YOUTH COUNCILJNC.

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018)

2019

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

SUPPORT, REVENUES, AND OTHER
Support:

Federal and State grants

Contributions and grants

S  371,519
107,835

9  -
10,475

S  . 371,519
118,310

• S 319,023
59,350

special events:
Gross revenue

Less direct expenses

Net special events revenue

10,885

(3,306)

- 10,885

(3,306)

71,361

(5,245)

7,579 -
7,579 66,116

Revenues:

Contracted services

Rental income, net

Client.fees

189,085

45,250

.  16,451

-
189,085

45,250

16,451

210,765

37,197

26,950

Other: -

18

980
Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Net Assets Released From Restriction

2

10

11,225 (11,225)

2

10

Total Support, Revenue, and Other 748,956 (750) -  748,206 720,399

EXPENSES

Program Services:
Court Diversion Program

Suspension Center

Student Assistance Program

Other Programs

Total Program Services

90,131

68,304

110,971

425,977

-

90,131

68,304

110,971

425,977

80,684

53,868

78,924

. 427,254

695,383 -
695,383 640,730

Supporting Services:
Management and general
Fuhdraising

Total Supporting Services

Total Expenses

87,729

.  252

.  - 87,729

252

62,369

26,421

87,981 87,981 88,790

783,364 •
783,364 729,520

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (34,408) (750) (35,158) (9,121)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 39,890 11,225 51,115 60,236

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR .  $ 5,482 $  10,475 $  15,957 .  S 51,115

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4



THE YOUTH COUNCIL, INC.
CO

«o'

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018)

Personnel expense;

Salaries and wages S
Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

Accotftting

Advertising arvl promotion

Conferences, conventions, and meetings

Depreciation and amortization

Information techi^ogy
InsurarKe

Interest

Legal

MisceMarteous

OccuparKy

OfTice expertses

Supplies

Professional services

Travel

Total expenses by function

Less expenses included on the Statement of Activities:

Direct special events expenses

, Total reported on the Statement of Activities S  90,131

2019

Supportiftg Services

Court Student'' Total Total

Suspension Assistance Other Program Martagement
Fundraisins

Supporting 2019 2018

Proeram Center Proeram Programs Services and (ieneral Services Total Total

68,316 46,356 100,034 2K056 S  448,762 S  50,470 S  3,044 53,514 S  502.276 S  475,358

198 102 84,875 85,175 25 25 85,200 74,581

5,139 3,487 7,525 17,606 33,757 3,797 229 4,026 37,783 36,053

. . . 5.850 S.8S0 5,850 6.500

. . . 2,303 2,303 2,303 910

. 5SS 3,603 4,158 . •
4,158 3,187

2,979 3,389 . 8,013 14,381 4,623 -
4,623 19,004 19,404

721 489 1,055 2,468 4,733 532 32 S64 5,297 5,095

1,787 2,032 . 4,807 8,626 2,773 2,773 11,399 13,026

2,330 2,649 6,267 11,246 3,616 3,616 14,862 15,167

. . . 748 748 748

. . . 663 663 .
663 146

6,036 6,861 . 16,235 29,132 9,215 ISO 9,365 38.497 31,899

2,625 3,030 310 5,785 11,750 3,777 3,777 15,527 25,550

. 11 1,098 15,888 16,997 - 103 103 17,100 10,670

. . 24,957 24,957 - •
24,957 15,437

. . 292 754 1,046 •  - • 1,046 1,782

90,131 68,304 •  110,971 425,977 695,383 87,729 3,5S8' 91.287 786,670 734,765

68,304 S  110.971 $ 425,977 S  695,383

(3,306) (3.306) J3J061. (5.245)

<o

2
>

o

o

V
o
m
*n
to

k

>
o
m
>

S  87,729 S 252 $ 87,981 S 783,364 S 729,520

The accompanying notes are an integral part of.these financial statements.

5
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THE YOUTH COUNCIL, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cashflows From Investing Activities: .
Purchases of property and equipment

Return of security deposit

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Drawdowns on line of credit

Payments on line of credit
Principal payments of long-term debt

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest

$  (35,158) $ (9,121)

19,004

36,608

(11,225)

8,108

(2,020)

3,249

18,566

(3,250)

(650)

(3,900)

25,000

(25,000)

(9,514)

(9,514)

5,152

53,877

$  59,029

$  14,862

19,404

(21,913)

37,254

(3,802)

(9,769)

3,858

15,911

(151)

(151)

(9,102)

(9,102)

6,658

47,219

S  53,877

$  . 15,167

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
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THE YOUTH COUNCIL INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

1. Organization

The Youth Council, Inc. (the Council) specializes in programs centered on youth guidance
and counseling. The Council seeks to achieve its mission through programs such as the
following:

Court Diversion Program

This program helps local police departments divert first-time youth offenders from the
juvenile justice system through an evidence-based, comprehensive program that holds
youth accountable, while providing assessment and referrals to additional services
based on the needs of the youth.

Suspension Cenfer

A partnership with a local school district to provide suspended middle school students
with a safe, supervised setting which includes assessment, referrals to appropriate
external services, and educational support.

Student Assistance Program

This program provides counselors on-site at middle and high schools to help students
^  struggling with stressors that may lead to risky behavior such as substance misuse,

through short term counseling, education, support, and referrals, as necessary.

Other Programs

Other programs such as counseling offer short-term professional support to help
children, teens, and families struggling with issues related to alcohol/drug use, anger
management, communication, depression, developing boundaries, grief, healthy
choices, peer pressure, relationships, self-esteem, sexuality, and stress.

2. Summaryof Significant Accounting Principles

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used In preparing and
presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Change in Accounting Principle
ASU 2016-14 Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Entities
On August 18, 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and
understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies In information about liquidity
and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information
provided about expenses and investment return. ASU 2016-14 has been implemented In
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fiscal year 2019 and the presentation in these financial statements has been adjusted
accordingly.

Change in Accounting Principle
ASU 2016-14 Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Entities

On August 18, 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accountirig
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and
understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity
and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information
provided about expenses and Investment return. ASU 2016-14 has been implemented in
fiscal year 2019 and the presentation in these financial statements has been adjusted
accordingly.

Comparative Financial Information
The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year sunimarized
comparative Information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such,
information should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2018, from which the sunimarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months
or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes,
are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid financial
instruments invested for long-term purposes are excluded from this definition.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of nonintereS|t-bearing amounts due for services
and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based on
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Amounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectable.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that expected are
expected to be collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present
value techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the
assumptions market participates would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,
amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the Statement of
Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions is based on historical
experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent
collections. Contributions receivable are written off when deemed uncollectable.
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Management has determined that contributions receivable are fully collectable,
therefore no allowance has been recorded.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at fair value at
the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line,
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to Si.S years, or In
the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful,
life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the
cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss Is included in
the Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or

extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and
eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to
the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of
asset impairment in fiscal years 2019 or 2018.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified
and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain
grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Contributions restricted by donors are reported as increases

' in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting
period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are
reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of
the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are

' reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the Statement of
Activities as net assets released from restriction.
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Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-

reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in
which the related services are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as increases

in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the contributed assets is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor

to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets

with donor restrictions. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have

an implied restriction to be used in the year the payment is due and, therefore, are

reported, as net assets with donor restrictions until payment Is due unless the

contribution is clearly intended to support activities of the current year. Conditional

promises to give, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they become
unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

The Council periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash. Contributed

property and equipment is recognized as an asset at its estimated fair, value at the date

of the gift, provided that the value of the asset and its estimated useful life meets the

Council's capitalization poljcy. Donated goods are recorded as contributions at the date
of gift and as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only

if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have

been purchased If not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and are

provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Statement of

Activities and Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a

functional basis in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Functional Expenses

presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain

costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes

The Council has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from

federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section SOl(a) as an

organization described In IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution

deductions, and has been determined not to be a private foundation. The Council is

annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt frpm Income Tax (Form 990)

with the IRS. In addition, the Council Is subject to income tax on net income that is

10
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derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. In fiscal years

2019 and 2018, the Council was subject to unrelated business income tax and filed an

Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect the. reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates, and those
differences could be material. -

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial Institutions
believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits.
To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk
associated with accounts and contributions receivable is considered to be limited due to

high historical collection rates.

Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair

value is the price that would be received to isell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal, or rhost advantageous, market at the
measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to
determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would
use In pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are
inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability .based on the best
information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

•  Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical .asset's or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

•  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
■ for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar

assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inpu.ts other than quoted prices

that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

•  Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are

developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

11
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In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might

be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair

value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value

hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires

judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization

of an asset within the hierarchy Is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and

does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity

profile of the asset or liability.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards

Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard's core

principle is that an organization will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

organization expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This standard

also includes expanded disclosure requirements that result In an entity providing users of
financial statements with comprehensive information about the nature, timing, and

uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from-the organization's contracts with

customers. This standard will be effective for the Council for the year ending June 30, 2020.

The Council is currently in the process of evaluating the Impact of adoption of this ASU on

the financial statements.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases with
lease terrns more than 12 months to be capitalized as a right of use asset and lease liability

on the balance sheet at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be classified as either

finance leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for the pattern of
expense recognition in the income statement. This ASU will be effective for the Council for
the year ending June 30, 2023. The Council is currently in the process of evaluating the
impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

Contributions Received and Contributions Made

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting

Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The purpose of this
amendment, due to diversity in practice, is to clarify the definition of an exchange
transaction as well as the criteria for evaluating whether contributions are unconditional or
conditional. This standard will be effective for the Council for the year ending June 30, 2020;

The Council is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial
statements.

12
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Equity Investments

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting

Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Financial Instruments -

Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities, which relates to the accounting for equity investmients, financial liabilities

under the fair value option, and the presentation and disclosure requirements for

financial instruments. This standard will be effective for the Council for the year ending

June 30, 2020. The Council is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the

financial statements.

Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value

Measurement, which modifies the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements,

and removed disclosures related to transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value

hierarchy, the policy for timing transfers between levels, the valuation process of Level 3

fair value measurements, and a roil forward of Level 3 investments. This standard will be

effective for the Council for the year ending June 30, 2021. The Council is currently

evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB Issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial

Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured

at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected.

Thus, the income statement will reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly-

recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases of expected

credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be effective for the

Organization for the year ending June 30, 2024. The Organization is currently In the
process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In September 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2020-07, Not-
for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosure by Not-for-Profit Entities for
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve transparency in the reporting of
contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit

organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial assets Include fixed assets such as
land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed assets or utilities; and. recognized
contributes services. The ASU requires a not-for-profit organization to present contributed
nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the Statement of Activities, apart from

contributions of cash or other financial assets. It also requires certain disclosures for each

category of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The amendments in this ASU
should be applied on a retrospective basis and are effective for annual reporting periods-
beginning after June 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted, the Council is currently
evaluating the impact of adoption on this ASU on the financial statements.

13
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Finaricial assets available for general expenditure, that Is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Statement of Financial

Position, are comprised of the following at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

Financial assets at year end: 2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $  59,029 S 53,877

Accounts receivable 53,472 90,080„

Contributions receivable 22,450 11,225

134,951 155,182

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Net assets with donor restrictions 10,475 -

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next year $  124,476 $ 155,182

The Council regularly monitors liquidity required to meet Its operating needs and other

contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available

funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the

next year, the Council operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting
sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted

resources. To manage liquidity, the Council has access to a line of credit with available

borrowings up to $25,000. .

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Land . $  28,397 $  28,397

Building and improvements 576,637 576,637

Furniture and equipment 44,133 40,883

Total property and equipment 649,167 645,917

Less accumulated depreciation ■  (426,839) (408,313)

Property and equipment, net $  222,328 $  237,604

Depreciation expense totaled $19,004 and $19,404 for the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively.

14
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5. Line of Credit

At June 30, 2019 the Council had a $25,000 revolving line of credit with a bank, secured
by an interest in all of the Council's assets and an assignment of rents. Borrowings under
the line are due upon demand and bear interest at the bank's prime rate plus 1% (6.50%
at June 30, 2019 and 2018). At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Council had no outstanding
balance on the line of credit. The line of credit is classified as Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.

6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy and consists of the
following at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Mortgage payable (dated May 16, 2014) to a bank, due

in monthly Installments of $2,022, including principal

and interest at 4.5%, payable overlO years and
thereafter on demand, and secured by real estate.

Less:

Amount due within one year

Unamortized loan closing costs

Long-term debt, net of current portion

$  317,927 $ 327,440

(9,540)

(2,310)

$  306,077 $

(9,781)

(2,788)

314,871

The carrying value of long-term debt, including the current portion, approximates fair
value at June 30, 2019 and 2018, based on current borrowing rates for mortgages with
similar maturities.

Future maturities of long-term debt is as follows:

Year Amount

2020 $ 9,540

2021 10,039

2022 10,564

2023 11,117

2024 276,667

Total S 317,927
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7. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at June 30, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:

Computers and website design $ 10,475 $

Time restrictions - 11,225

Total $ 10,475 $ 11,225

8. Functlonallzed Expenses

The financial staterhents report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation
on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated
include occupancy, office expenses, insurance, interest, and depreciation, which are
allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages, benefits, payroll taxes
and Information technology^ which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and

effort.

9. Retirement Plan

The Council has adopted a 403(b) retirement plan for employees who are at least 21
years of age, working at least 30 hours per week, and have completed 30 days of
employment. The plan allows for employee contributions in accordance with the
Internal Revenue Code. There is no provision for contributions by the Council.

10. Concentrations of Risk

A material part of the Council's revenue is dependent upon government sources, the
loss, of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Council. During the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, Southern New Hampshire Health accounted for 29% and
23%, respectively, and Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Services accounted for 15% and 18%,
respectively, of total revenues.

11. Reclasslflcations

Certain reclasslfications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented.
The reclassificatlons had no impact on previously reported net assets.
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1-2. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 9, 2021, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States (and across the globe) has resulted In
certain economic uncertainties. The disruption is expected to be temporary, but there Is
considerable uncertainty around the duration and scope. The extenfof the impact of
COVID-19 on the Council's operational and financial performance will depend on certain
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on those
served, the Council's funders, employees, and vendors all of which are uncertain and

cannot .be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the
Council's financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.

In response to the impact that COVID-19 has had on our organization, a Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) Loan was applied for, and $76,000 received on Aprir24, 2020.
In addition, the Council has been approved for a second PPP Loan in the amount of

$97,500.

In 2021, the Council agreed to sell Its building for $645,000 and will realize
approximately $280,000 after closing costs and mortgage payoff. The agency has also
agreed to purchase a commercial condominium for $323,000 of which $100,000 will be
financed.
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'The Youth
<(1 Council

Board of Directors - 2021

PRESIDENT

Jennifer Linastas, MSW

VICE PRESIDENT

Sgt. Nicole Hannigan

Nashua Police Department

TREASURER

Larry Szetela Post President

Laurence Szetela, CPA

SECRETARY

Karrie Benson

Morneau Law

Christine Stein Past President

BAE Systemis

John Phelan

Bank Prov

Sue Mathias

Boston Billiard and Casino.

Ann Parks •

Cornell University

JennaWebb

MSW Student

Casey Caster, Executive Director

Ex Officio
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The Youth Council Key Staff Resumes

Lindsey Bergeron

Experience

The Youth Council, 2007-Present

Clinical Director, Sep 2019 - Present

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor; Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor, May 2008

September 2019

Spidaliere Psychological Associates, LLC, Jan 2014 - Present

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor; Certified Prevention Specialist

Souhegan High School, Mar 2014 - Aug 2016

Student Assistance Program Counselor

Education

Rivler University, Master of Arts, Mental Health Counseling, 2005 - 2008

Rivier College, Bachelor of Arts, Psychology/Sociology, 2001 - 2005

Licenses & certifications

Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor, Aug 2016, NH Board of Alcohol and Other Drug Use

Professionals

Certified Challenge Course Facilitator, June 2013, NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network

Certified Prime For Life Instructor, Sept 2012, Prevention Research Institute

Rebecca Lerner

Experience

The Youth Council, Get 2017 - Present

SAP Counselor

Education

Springfield College Master of Science - MS Mental Health Counseling/Counselor, 2015 - 2017
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Casey Caster

Professional Experience
The Youth CounciK March 2021 -Present

Executive Director

Big Brothers Big Sisters of New Hampshire, July 2013 - March 2021

Vice President of Community Relations, October 2019 - Present
• Manage $400,000 annually in corporate, foundation, municipal and federal government grants, including
developing strategic grant proposals, overseeing compliance, and completing program and financial reporting.
• Lead and collaborate with a team of one flill-time communications coordinator and a part-time grant writing
consultant for a mentoring program annually serving 500 New Hampshire youth and volunteer mentors.
• Develop engaging communication materials for marketing, fundraising and volunteer engagement purposes
across multiple media channels, including social media content, media pitches and media appearances.

• Build and strengthen collaborative relationships with partner agencies and state and community leaders.

Director of Grants & Communications, -'S>cpV:mh^x20\9
• Worked closely with senior leadership, development, and program departments to create and execute a
communications plan focused on irhproving volunteer recruitment and engagement, and increasing fundraising.
• Researched, developed and vvrote compelling grant proposals, oversaw compliance and completed reporting.

Grfl/7/PkV/Ver, January2015-July 2017
• Created and executed an annual grants plan during the statewide merger of four regional BBBS agencies,
including researching, writing, and managing new and existing corporate, foundation and government grants.

Enrollment & Matching Specialist, Nashua, July 2013 - January 2015
• Recruited, screened, enrolled and trained approximately 200 volunteer mentors per year.
• Met with enrolling youth and their families to assess needs and interests and provide prograrri orientation.

The Keene SentineL March 2008-July 2013
Opinion Page Editor, July 2012 - July 2013
• Wrote six editorials on deadline per week, edited opinion columns, and designed daily Opinion Page.
• Met with advocacy groups, government officials, and politicians, including gubernatorial and
presidential candidates, to develop and set the editorial board's position on local and national issues.

March 2008 - July 2012
• Researched and wrote daily deadline articles and long-term enterprise projects specializing in crime and
courts, health, and military/veterans issues, with a particular focus on breaking down complex topics.
• Wrote an award-winning series about an Army Reserve unit that included a 3-week reporting embed in Iraq.

Peace Corps, English Teacher and Community Outreach Worker, Turkmenistan, Oct. 2005 - Dec. 2007
• Collaborated with community leaders, local teachers and government officials with input from various
community stakeholders to organize, fund and execute multiple youth civic engagement projects.
• Taught daily English classes (grades 4-9) and led extracurricular and summer educational programs.

Education

B.S. Print Journalism (with honors), Emerson College, Boston, MA, May 2005
•-Minor: Political Science



BRYANT D. ETUKA, M.S.

MENTAL HEALTH CLINICIAN

Dedicated and compassionate provider with ten years' experience working with youth ages 5 to 21 and adults ages 18-65

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS

Mental Health Behavior Modification Support Group Leadership

Crisis Intervention Teaching and Mentoring Treatment Plans and Evaluation

Psycho-Educational Support Psychological Assessment Child and Family Therapy

EDUCATION

•  New England College, Henniker, NH, May 2018

Master.of Science, Clinical Mental Health Counseling

New England College, Henniker, NH, May 2016

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE

Center for Life Management, Derry, NH June-July 2021

Adult ACT Clinician

Work as part of a multidisciplinary team to provide great quality and effective clinical services to consumers who have

met the criteria to receive services following the Assertive Community Treatment (ACT), an evidenced-based practice

model.

•  Delivered quality care and treatment to clients with various psychological and physical impairments

•  Supported personal growth, safety, and emotional well-being of clients via individual counseling sessions
•  Facilitated clients' ability to self-advocate by educating individuals and caregivers on their condition(s)

Keystone Human Services, Wethersfield, CT Dec. 2020-May. 2021

Life Skills Coach

Help individuals develop healthy habits and skills needed to integrate into the community and pursue opportunities for

employment (if unemployed) to improve their overall quality of life.

•  Deliver quality care and treatment to clients with various disabilities

o  Support goal-setting, personal growth and behavior modifications

•  Facilitate clients achieve their goals by improving different actions necessary to take control of future plans



Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Laconia, NH Oct. 2019 - Mar. 2020

Child & Family Mental Health Clinician

Provide outpatient assessments, treatments, referrals, consultations, and education services to children, adolescents, and

families with severe emotional, behavioral, and mental instabilities via individual, family, and group therapy modalities

•  Delivered quality care and treatment to clients with various psychological and physical impairments

•  Supported personal growth, safety, and emotional well-being of clients via individual counseling sessions

•  Facilitated clients' ability to self-advocate by educating individuals and caregivers on their conditi6n{s)

Monadnock Family Services, Keene, NH Oct. 2018 ~ Oct. 2019

Adult Mental Health Clinician

Provide outpatient assessments, treatments, referrals, consultations, and education services to adults with severe

emotional, behavioral, and mental instabilities via individual and group therapy modalities

•  Delivered quality care and treatment to clients with various psychological and physical impairments

•  Supported personal growth, safety, and emotional well-being of clients via individual counseling sessions

•  Facilitated clients' ability to self-advocate by educating individuals and caregivers on their condition(s)

Crotched Mountain Rehabilitation Center, Greenfield, NH Oct. 2017 - Aug. 2018

Psychology Intern

Provided comprehensive psychological assessment services to clients ranging in age from 5 to 21 at a rehabilitation

center serving over 2,000 children and adults with disabilities per year

•  Delivered quality care and treatment to clients with various psychological and physical impairments

•  Supported personal growth, safety, and emotional well-being of clients via individual counseling sessions

•  Facilitated clients' ability to self-advocate by educating individuals and caregivers on their condition(s)

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Hennlker Fitness Center, Henniker, NH Oct. 2018 - Feb. 2019

Front Desk Associate

Deliver outstanding customer service to current and prospective members of a locally-owned fitness facility open 24/7

daily

Coring. Compassionate. Patient-Centered.



•  Utilize consultative selling techniques to help guests identify the best membership options for their unique
needs

•  Provide thorough overview of policies pertaining to gym membership and initial enrollment

•  Ensure that equipment and facilities are cleaned, sanitized, and well-maintained for guests' comfort and safety

Daniel's of Henniker Restaurant and Pub, Henniker, NH

Line Cook

April 2017-Aug. 2018

Supported Head Chef at a highly-regarded casual-meets-upscale restaurant and pub overlooking the Coontoocook River

•  Prepared menu ingredients; cooked, assembled, and plated meals for lunch and dinner service
!

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

YMCA Camp Ingersoll, Portland, CT

Camp Counselor

June 2016-Aug. 2016

Cultivated unique, positive relationships with a group of day campers ages five to 17

•  Served as role mode! and teacher; observed and assisted campers with behavioral challenges, e.g. ADHD
•  Led campers through various activities (e.g. games, teambuilding exercises) ensuring safety, vyell-being of all

Internal Drive Technology Camp ("iD Tech Camp"), New Haven, CT

Health and Safety Coordinator

June 2015 - Aug. 2015

Directly assisted campers with various behavioral disorders (e.g. autism spectrum disorders, ADHD) and other behavioral
issues (e.g. anger management, stuttering/speech disorders) while maintaining peace and order among all campers

•  Administered prescribed medications to campers; provided basic first aid (e.g. wound care, splinting injuries)

Xavier High School and Leadership Institute, Middletown, CT Sept. 2011 - May 2012

Peer Leader

•  Selected to mentor and deliver academic, extra-curricular, and social support to two freshmen at Xavier High

Victory Christian Church, Middletown, CT April 2007 - Sept. 2012

Assistant Youth Leader

•  Supported Youth Leader by coordinating, promoting, facilitating, and supervising three youth programs/camps
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The Youth Council, Nashua, NH

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Rebecca Lemer SAP Counselor $43,100 100 $43,100
Bryant Eluka SAP Counselor $45,000 . 100 $40,000

Lindsey Bergeron,,- Clinical Director $56,000 20 $11,200

Casey Caster Executive Director $80,000 6 $4,780
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Lori A.SblWtcm

Cotnuiiuioacr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

GOVERNOR'S COMMtSSiON ON ALCOHOL <£ OTHER DRUGS

129 PLEASAirr STREET. CONCORD. NH 03J0I
603>371-9564 >.800404-0909

Pii: 603-27I4IOS TDDA<ceu: i400-73S-2^ www.dhhi.nh.gov/dcbcs/bdM

June 10.2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below for the provision of evidenced informed
substance misuse prevention direct services to youth, and their parents and careglvers. by
increasing the total price limitation by $819,327 from $2,670,252 to $3,489,579 and by extending the
completion dates from July 1. 2020 to June 30. 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval.
The original contracts were approved by Govemor and Council on June 21. 2017. Late Item 8. and
most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 20. 2018, item #37.100% Other
Funds-.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Number

Location Contract

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Contract

Amount

G&C Approval

Boys and
Girls Club of

Greater

Salem

160066

Salem,
Nashua &

Souhegan
Valley

$653,868 $216,488 $870,356

0; 08/23/17,
Item 020

A1: 06/20/18,
Item #37

North

Country
Education

Services

154707

Northern

Grafton &

Cops County
$519,130 $172,065 $691,195

0: 08/23/17,
Item #20

A1; 06/20/18,
Item #37"

New

Hampshire -
Teen

.  Institute

166624 Statewide $759,112 $215,655 $974,767

0: 06/21/17,
Late Item 8

A1: 06/20/18.
Item #37

The Upper
Room

246053

• Rockingham
County &

Surrounding
Communities

$301,073 $87,109 $388,182

0:06/21/17.
Late Item 8

A1:06/20/18.
Item #37

The Yoiilh
Council

154886

Nashua North

& Nashua

South High
Schools

$437,069
$128,010 $565,079

0:06/21/17,
Late Item B

A1: 06/20/18,
Item #37

Total: $2,670,252 $819,327 $3,489,679

Funds are available in the following account(s) for Stale Fiscal Year 2021, with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office if needed and justified.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 964A40O3-CEF9-49BO-81F4-9406225ACEM

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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06-95-49-491610-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DERI OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

. Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Numt>er

Current:

(Modified)
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017
102-

500731

Contracts for

PfOfl Svc
49158502 $194,658 SO - $194,658

Subtotal $194,658 $0 $194,658

05-9^92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

(Modified)
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc 92058502 $836,940 $0 $836,940

2019
102-

500731

Contracts for

Proa Svc
92058502 $819,327 $0 ■, $819,327

2020
102-
500731

Contracts for
Prog Svc

92058502 $819,327 $0 $819,327

2021
102-
500731

Contracts for
Prog Svc

92058502 $0 $819,327 $819,327

Subtotal $2,475,594 $819,327 $3,294,921

Total $2,676,252 $819,327 $3,489,579

See Fiscal Details for Distribution of funds

EXPLANATION

As previously stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June
21, 2017, Late Item #B. It was then subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on
June 20; 2018. Item #37. ,

The purpose of this request Is to exercise a renewal option to continue providing substance
misuse prevention direct services to youth and related programming for their parents and careglvers.
Targets for this program include youth between ten (10) and twenty (20) years of age \^b are at risk
of engaging in the misuse of alcohol and the illicit use of drugs. Risk factors include youth
experiencing poor academic performance, behavioral probiems at school or that have dropped out
of school that are Involved with the juvenile justice'system and children whose parents or caregivers
are engaged in the active misuse of alcohol and or illicit drugs.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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The opioid epidemic in New Hampshire led to the passage of Senate Bill 533 (2016) making
additional resources available to the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug ^use
Prevention, Treatment and Recovery. The Commission identified a portion of the funding allocated
under SB 533 for prevention direct services that target youth, including those proposed in this
request;

Approximately 2.000 individuals will be served from June 30. 2020 through June 30. 2021.
The goal of those contracted prevention programs is to prevent the onset and use of alcohol and
drugs and to increase parental and caregiver knowledge regarding the negative effects that
substance misuse has on their chiid(ren). improving parental and caregiver knowledge and
communication skills, and to increase parental and caregiver monitoring of their chiid(ren)*s behavior
and activities. These programs promote positive youth development with the goal of preventing and
reducing the misuse of alcohol, marijuana, prescription drugs and opioids.

Each vendor has chosen approved evidenced informed programs that include education and
counseling, and information on healthy activities that can be developed as alternatives to engaging
in the misuse of alcohol and drugs and other risky behaviors. Programs Include individual or group
education and awareness about the serious and sometimes deadly- consequence of substance
misuse-and assistance in helping youth acquire the skills necessary to resist negative peer pressure
for using alcohol or other drugs, their engagement in the development and promotion of alternative
social activities, and to assist participating youth in developing other mechanisnns for coping with
stressful circumstances in their life at home or school. These programs also involve parents and
caregivers to promote improved communication within the family about this topic.

All vendors providing direct prevention services through these contracts are required to
establish ongoing working collaborative relationships with community-based organizations Induding,
health and social .service agencies and schools, and the Regional Public Health-Network in their
area. The contractors are also required to conduct outreach to youth and their parents and caregivers
to make them aware of these services and how to access them.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General Provisions, of the original contracts, the
parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and
Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the pne
(1) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council hot authorize this request, approximately 4;000
youth who are at high risk for developing a 8ut)stance misuse disorder may hot have access to
comprehensive substance misuse prevention services.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

submittullRespec

ion A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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Aiiachmeni A

Financial Details

05-95^0^91510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: OIV OF COMM BASED CARE

SVC. BUREAU OF DRUG E ALCOHOL SVCS. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Om«r Funds)

Ndw Hsmpshlfe Taen InstiUits V»166624 POF1056422

Stats Fiscal

Yaar Class/Account ' Tills Budget Amount
Increase' Decrease

Kevised

Modified

Aiirtrint

2017 102-5007J4
Contracts for Prog

Svc $107,744 $0 $107,744

Sub-total $107,744 SO S107.744

The UoDorRoom V«i742i0 PO111057461

Sute Fiscal

Year Clsss/Accounl Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Dscreese

Kevisea

Modified

2017 102-500734
Contracts lor Prog'

Svc .  S36.811 SO $36,611

Sub-total $36,811 SO S36.811

The Youth Council VP 1S4656 POP1056421

Stats Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Kevtsad.

Modified

2017 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $50,103 $0 SS0.103

SutMotal $50,103 SO S50.103

ToUl SFY17 $194,638 ■  SO S194.6S6

05-9S-92-920$10*33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS; OIV FOR BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Oth«r Funds)

State Fiscal

Year Cless/Accounl Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease'

' Revised

Modified

2016 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc S220.892 SO S220.892

2019 102-500734
Contracts lor Prog

Svc .$216,486 SO S2l 6.488

2020 102-5007W
Contracts for Prog

Svc $216,468 SO $216,468

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc SO $216,486 $216,486

Sub-total S653.868 .  $216,488 $870,356

Stete Fiscal

Year Clase/Account Tlile Budget Amount
Increaee/ Decrease

Kevised

Modified

Hiirtnnf

2018 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $220,058 SO $220,058

2019 102-500734
Contracts for FYog

Svc $215,655 $0 $215,655

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc '  $215,655 SO $215,655

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc SO $215,655 S215.655

' Sub-tola! $651,366 $215,655 $867,023

Atischnieni A

Fln*n<li1 Detail

Pace 1 «l2



DocuSign Envelope ID: 964A40D3-CEF9-49BO-81F4-9406225ACEA4

Attachment A

Financial Details

State Fiscal

Yaaf Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Keviaed

Modined

2018 102-500734
Contracts (or FVog

Svc $175,000 $0 $175,000

2019 102-500734
Contracts (or Prog

Svc .S172.065 SO $172,065

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $172,085 SO $172,065

2021 . 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc SO $172,065 $172,065

Sub-total $519,130 $172,065 $691,195

Stale Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease '

Kevised

Modified

2018 102-500734
Conuacis for Prog

Svc $90,044 SO $90,044

2019 102-500734
Contracts (or Prog

Svc $87,109 SO $87,109

2020 102-500734
Contracts (or Prog

Svc $87,109 $0 $87,109

2021 102-S00734
Contracts (or Prog

Svc $0 $87,109 $87,109

'  Sub-total $264,262 $87.109 $351,371

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Keviaed

Modified
Rr.Hni>l

2018 • 102-500734
Contracts (or Prog

Svc $130,946 SO $130,946

2019 102-500734
Contracts (Of Prog

Svc $128,010 SO $128,010

2020 102-500734
Contracts (or Prog

Svc $128,010 $0 $128,010

2021 102-500734
Contracts lor Prog

Svc SO $128,010 $128,010

Sub-total $386,966 $128,010 $514,976

Grand Total S2.670.252 $819,327 $3,489,579

Total SFY17 $194,658 SO $194,658

Total SFY18 $836,940 so $836,940

Total SFY19 S819,327 so $819,327

Total SFY20 $819,327 so $819,327

Total SFY21 SO 5819.327 $819,327

S2.670.252l Sai9.327| S3.489.S79lI Grand Total |

Boys & Gins Club ot Greater Salem V41&0066 PO ((1058002 $653,668 $216,488 5870,356

'  New Hsmoshire Teen Institulo Vffl66624 PO ((1056422 $759,112 $215,655 $974,767

North Country Education Services VS154707 PO ((1058007 $519,130 $172,065 S691.19S

The Upper Room V/fl 74210 PO 41057401 S301.073 $87,109 S368.162

The Youth Council V/f 154886 PO 41056421 S437.069 -  $128,010 5565.079

' Total by Aoencv $2,670,252 $619,327 53.469.579

AiucHmcni A

Financi*! Oeiail

Pa|e 2 o'2
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New Hampshire Departmentlof Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

State of New Hampshire
, Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Substance Misuse Prevention Direct SorvtcM Contract

This 2"^ Amendment td the Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services contrart (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #2") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State* or •Department") and The Youth Council, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 112 West Pearl Street, Nashua.
NH. 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contrsct") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017, (Late Item #B). as amended on June 20. 2018, (Item #37), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain Bervlcee bawd upon the terms and conditions spedfied In the Contract as amended and
Iri consideration of certein sums spedfied; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor artd Executive Coundl; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price llmitetion to
support continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$565,079.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D.-White. Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, Slate Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631. .

5. Add Exhibit B-4, Budget - Amendment #2. attached hereto end Incorporated by reference herein.

The Youth Courxil Amendment« Contractor

RFP.2017-BDAS-Ol-SUBST-Ofr3-A02 Page t Of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

All terms and corxlltions of the Contract and prior amendment not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full foroe and effect This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Ccunctl approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Data

State of New Hannpshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^ Name: Katja S. Fox
^i«o: Director

>Z-20' ZOlU^
Date

The Youth Council

. V-7

A ACs. « OName

-Title:

The Youth Couhdl

RFP-2017-eDAS.01 -SUBST-OS-AOa

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

06/06/20 Catherine Pinos
Date Name;

•  Title: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Oate Name:
Trtlo:

The Youth Council Amendment«

RFP-2O17-BO/^_OVSUBST-0S-A02 P»fle 3 of 3
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JcfTrej A. Mcycra
Comfflluioner

CbritlineToppao
AsiociDit Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

HVMAN SER VICES AND BEHA VJORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 0330 U3857
S03-27J-954$ J-800-8S2-334S Ext9S46

Fm:603.27 M232 TDD Accc«: 1-800-735-2964

w>vw.dhh$.nh.gov

May 3, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Chrisitopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council '

State House '

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, to exercise renewal options with the vendors listed in the table below for the pro^sion of
evidericed informed substance misuse prevention direct sen/ices to youth and their parents/careglvers
by increasing the price limitation by $1,638,654 from $1,031,598 to an amount not to exceed
$2,670,252 and extending the completion from June 30. 2018 to June 30, 2020 effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Other Funds.

Vendor
Vendor

Number
Area Served

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

G&C

Approval

Boys and Girls
Club of

Greater Salem

160066

Salem,
Nashua &

Sougehan
Valley

$220,892 $432,976 $653,868
O; 08/23/17

#20

North Country
Education

Services

154707

Northern

Grafton &

COOS County

■  $175,000 $344,130 $519,130
0; 08/23/17

#20

New

Hampshire
Teen Institute

166624 Statewide .  . $327,802 $431,310 $759,112.
D: 06/21/17
Late Item B

The Upper
Room .

246053.

Rockingham
County &

Surrounding
Communities

$126,855 $174,218 $301,073
O:

06/21/17

Late Item B

The Youth

Council
154886

Nashua North

& Nashua

South High
Schools

$181,049 $256,020 $437,069
O; 06/21/17

Late Item B
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 4

Funding Is available in following account in State Fiscal Years 2019 and anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Year 2020.upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office, without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

05-95-49-491510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, PERT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds) ' .

Fiscal

Year
Class Title

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Amount

*2017
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prooram Sen/ices
$194,658 so.oo $194,658

Sub'Tolat: $$194,658 $0 $194,658

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS. HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

Fiscal

Year
Class Title

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2018
102-

■  500731

Contracts for

Program Services
$836,940 $0.00 $836,940

2019
102-

■' 500731
Contracts for

. Program Services $0.00 $819,327 $819,327,

2020
102-

500731
Contracts for

Program Services
$0.00 $819,327 $819,327

Sub-Tota!: $836,940 $1,638:654 $2,475,594
Grand Total: $1,031,598 $1,638,654 $2,670,252

See Fiscal Details for Distribution of Funds .

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to exercise a renewal options in the agreements with the vendors
listed in the above table to continue providing substance misuse prevention direct services to youth and
related programming for their parents/caregivers. Targets for this program include youth between ten
(10) and twenty (20) years of age who are at risk of engaging in the misuse of alcohol and illicit use of
drugs. Risk factors include youth experiencing poor academic performance or behavioral problems at
school or that'have dropped out of school, that are involved with the juvenile justice systerh, as well as
children whose parents/caregivers are engaged in the active misuse of alcohol and or illicit drugs.

The goal of these contracted prevention programs is to delay of the onset and use of alcohol
and drugs and to increase parental knowledge about the. negative effects of substance misuse has on
their chitd(ren), Improving parental knowledge and comrnunicatlon skills and to increase parental
monitoring of their child{ren)'8 behavior and activities. These programs promote positive youth
development with the goal of.preventing and reducing the misuse of alcohol, marijuana, prescription
drugs and opioids.



DocuSign Envelope 10: 9S4A40D3-CEF9-49B0-81F4-9406225ACEM

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page3of4

Each ver>dor has chosen approved evidenced informed programs that include education and
counseling, as well as information on healthy activities that can be developed as alternatives to-
engaging In the misuse of alcohol and drugs and other risky behaviors. Programming includes
individual or. group education and awareness about the serious and sometimes deadly consequence.of
substance misuse and assistance in helping students acquire the skills necessary to resist negative
peer pressure for using alcohol or other drugs, their engagement in the development and promotion of
alternative social activities and to assist participating youth in developing other mechanisms for coping

'with stressful circumstances in their life at home or at school. These programs also involve
parents/caregivers and promote improved communication within the family about this topic.

The Department is satisfied with the program outcomes of the services provided by these five
vendors. Cbliectively, In the first three quarters of the fiscal year they have served 2,586 in a variefy of
evidenced-based programming and provided prevention education to 1,758 parents and caregivers.
Youth participating in the programs have stated they have an increase knowledge in knowing they
have a trustworthy adult they can turn to for advice if \hey were having a problem, an increased sense
of mastery over their emotions and have teamed healthy coping skills to deal with stress, and an
increase in their sense of confidence and satisfaction with who.they are a person.

The reports from the providers are attached. As such, the Department is requesting to exercise
the renewal option available in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions,, paragraph 3 of each of the
agreements for two (2) additional years.'

All vendors providing direct prevention services through these contracts are required to
establish ongoing working collaborative relationships with community based organizations including,
health and social service agencies and schools, as well as the Regional Public Health Network in their
area. The contractors are also required to conduct outreach-to youth and their parents/caregivers to
make them aware of these services and how to access them.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
state legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Year 2020^2021 biennium.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, approximately 4,000
youth who are at high risk for developing a substance misuse disorder may not have access to
comprehensive substance misuse prevention services.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds
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Hts Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 4 of 4

In the event that Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested
to support this program.

p^tfully submitted.

Thornas Pristow

Deputy Commissioner

Approved by;^
Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The OeporlmenLof HeoUh and Human Services' Mission is to join eomnwnilies and families in
providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Attachment A..

Financial Details

0S^-4M91510-29B9 H£ALTH AND SOaAl. SEAVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OP COMM BASED CARE
SVC, BUREAU OP DRUG S ALCOHOL SVCS. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100H Other Funds)

NpM Hamoshtre Teer\ Institute VP1SS624
••••

PO01O5G4ZZ

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount
Increesef Decrease

Revised

Modinod

2017 102-500734
Contracts for ProQ

Svc
5107,744 SO 5107.744

Sub-total $107,744 so S107.744

The Uooer Room V017421O PO #1057461

State Rfical

Veer Ciass/Accouni Title Budget Amount
Increest' Docreaso

HOVISOO

Modified
n,,>lna»

2017 • 102-500734
Contrects for Prog

Svc 536.ei1 50 S3S.811

Sub-total 536.811 SO S36.811

The Youth Coundl VtftSaaiaS PO #1056421

Stalo Fiscal

Year Clsss/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ Oecreose

Keviied

Modined

2017 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc 550.103 50 $50,103

Sub-tote! • 550.103 SO SS0.103

Total SFY17 5194.658 SO 5194.656

0^9S•92•S20510•)^B20000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DIV Of COMM BASED CARE
SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG B ALCOHOL SVCS. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUt^S (100% Other Funds)

Boye & Gtrts Oub of Greeter Salem Vtf16006S PO01058002

Stale Fiscal

Yeer Close/Account Title

1

Budget Amount
increase/Decrease

Kevised

Modified

2018 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc 5^.692 SO 5220.692

.2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc 50 S216,486 5216.486

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc SO 5216,466 5216.486

Sutr-total 5220.892 5432.976 5853.868

Stale Fiscal

Year Class/Accouhl Title Budgot Amount
Increase/ Decrease

Revised

Modified

'2016 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc S220.0S8 $0 $220,058

2019 102-500734
ContractsforProg

Svc SO S215,655 S216.55S

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc $0 5215.655 S21S,6SS

SutHotel 5220.056 5431.310 $651,368

State Fiscal

•  Year Clest/Accouni TWO Budget Amount .
Increase/ Qecrease

Hevtsed

Modified

2018 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc S17S.OOO SO 5175.000

2019 - 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc SO 5172.065 S172,065

20i20 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc SO 5172,065 $172,065

Sub-tetal $175,000 5344.130 $519,130

The Upper Room V017421O

Actxhmcflt A

nnsndsl Oecell

Face 1 of 2

PO 01037451
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Attachment A

Financial Details

SUt»FlM«l

Year Clait/Accouni TItIa ' Budget Amount
Increaaaf pecreaM

Havtaed

Modified

2018 102-500734
Contncta tor Prog

Svc S90.044 ' SO S90.044

2019 102-500734
Conncts for Prog '

Svc SO S87,109 S87,109

2020 102-500734
CoriDacts for Prog

Svc SO S87.109 S87.109

Sut>-lotal $90,044 S174.2IS $284,262

The Youth Council W\54638 PO 01036421

State Fiacal

Year \  Clasa/Account Tlile Budget Amount
tncraesa/ Oaaaasa

Kavisad

Modified

2018 102-500734
Contracts for Prog'

Svc $130,946 SO $130,646

2016 102-500734
Contracts lor Prog

Svc • SO $128,010 ■  S128.010

2020 "  102-500734
Contracts tor Piog

Svc SO S128.010 S128.010

SulHotal $130,946 $258,020 S386.966

Total SFY18 $836,940 SO $836,940

Total $FY1» $0 -  $819,327 S819.327

Total SFY20 SO S819.327 $819,327

SI,031.5981 $1.63e.654| $2.670.2521Oroftd Telel

Bovs 8 Girta Club of Crealer Satem V016OO56 PO 01058002 $220,692 $432,976 $653,858

New Kamoshlre Teen Institute V0186624' PO 01056422 $327,802 •  $431,310 $759112

North Country Education Services V01547O7 PO 01058007 S17S.OOO $344,130 $516,130

The Uooer, Room VHI74210 PO 01057481 $126,855 $174,216 $301,073

The Youth Council V0154886 PO 01056421 S181.049 $258,020 S437.069

Total bv Aotmcv $1,031,598 S1.638.8S4 $2,670,252

J

ARKhmeMA

FkuAdilOeul)

Pace 2 of 2
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Prevention Direct Services

Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drug Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Funded
Programs.

June-23, 2017-March 30,2018

■  'Due to contractual delays these programs did not go into contract until June 23rd

# of youth enrolled in Direct Prevention Services 2586

# of parents enrolled in a Prevention Education Curriculum 1758

■# of students who participate In a skill building workshop to reduce risks and
increase awareness

2132

# of students who were referred for community based behavioral health
supports or crisis Intervention

781

# of community based activities to raise awareness of behavioral health
issues facing adolescents

22 activities

Narratlve-Although the contracts were delayed for a variety of reasons all of the vendors with the
exception of The Youth Council had immediate capacity to deliver the services associated with their
evidenced-informed programs. Attached to this report is a list of the vendors and their evidenced
Informed programs.

It must be noted that although The Youth Council did not provide immediate -services they were
quickly were able to hire staff for Nashua North and South High School and were able to begin
services in October of 2017.

Currently, each vendor has their own evaluation process but the NH Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services {BOAS} has asked to incorporate the veridors to incorporate the following measures into all
of the vendor's evaluation procedures:

•  Participants have increase knowledge in knowing they have a trustworthy adult they can turn
to for advice, if they were having a problem; (93% of participants answered yes to this

■  question)

•  Participates have an increased sense of mastery over their emotions and have learned
healthy coping skills to deal with stress; (89% of participants answered yes to this question)

•  Participants have an increase in their sense of confidence and satisfaction with who they are
a person. (91% of participants answered yes to this question)
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In SFY '19 6DAS will be working with a contracted evaluation vendor to standardize a
parent/caregiver survey and will be developing key informant Interviews and focus groups wtth
participants and parents/caregivers to better measure the impact of these programs.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and hfuman Services

Amendment #1 to the Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services Contract

This 1*^ Amendment to the Substance Misuse Preveniion.Direct Services contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #1") dated this S® day of April; 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
The Youth Council, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of
business at 112 West Pearl Street, Nashua. NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017, (Late Item #B), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and cohditions specified In the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums
specified: and •

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms arxJ conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 4, the State rnay modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exercise a renewal option for up two (2) years and Increase the price
limitation to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained inthe Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form p.37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30,2020.

2. Form P-37, General FYovlsions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$437,069.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for Stale Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, toread:

603-271-9330.

■ 5. Add Exhibit B-2, Budget - Amendment #1.

6. Add Exhibit B-3, Budget - Amendment #1.

7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Tho Youtn Councfl Arnendmonl0l
RFP-2017-BOAS-O4 Psse 1 OfS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services Contract

This arnendment shaO be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS VifHEREOF. the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date' ' ^hrlstineTappan:
#omroieston5r: f*. ^ . rvi.

Date '
mkL

The Youth Council

■ Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Slate of N^gujVAa/wp^/rjCountv of W\U^lncvTSLirtV\ on . before the undersigned office
personally appeared tne person identiried directly abdi'e, or satisfactonly proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and TKI&^f Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: \ Q c^O *59.

Tho Youth Council
RFP-2017-8DA&04

Amenomeni 01

Pago 2 of 3
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New Hampehtre Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar-term referring to
situations .where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident" in section two (2) of NlST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, Nationai Institute of'Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse ■ Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personaliy Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and. all information owned or managed by
the State of NH- created, received from or on behalf of the Department'of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, discbsure. protection, and disposition Is govemed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity, (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business assodate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5; "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a !system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4.Ustupd&io 04.04.2018 ExhibUK Contractor inUals
DHHS InformationSoojrity Requlromenls - ikk

•Page lot 9 D4>o.
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New Hamp&hire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the polential to put the data at risk- of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open V\^reless Network' means any r«twork or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFi,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or "Pi') means Infbrmation which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individuaPs identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.;
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such'as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health-
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10; 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C;f^.R. Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health inforrhatlon
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security. Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

V4.U$I update 04.04.2018 ExhtbKK Contractor IntUals.
DHHS intormallon . '

Security Requirements
Pege2oi9 ' Oatd
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law. In response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notiries the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to tfie Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI. in violation of such additional
restrictions and rhust abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

IL METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2.- Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may npt use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
■ email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the. Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket' layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services,'also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriifled ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

,7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must tpe encrypt^ and passNVord-protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. Ustupdate 04.04.2018 Eidtlbit K Conirsctorlnitials.
OHHS Inromiation

Security ReqUremec^ts
Page 3 of 9 Date
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hiew Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K ■

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data,' a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. .

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidentiial Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and subrfolders used for transmitting Confid^tial Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 ■
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing,, cloud service or doud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systerns
and/or Department confidentiai information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Coritractcr agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electr'onic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. Ail servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anli-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, arxl anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a

V4. Lvst update 04.CM.20tfl ' ' ExhitjII K ContractorInlllals
OHHS Information

Security Requlremenis
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human SeWices

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggre^ive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerabilty of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition'

If the Contractor will mainlain any Confidential information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing Stale of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wjpe program
in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanilization, or otherwise physically destroying the ' media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NiST Special Publication 800-08, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data deslructiori, and will provide written certification to the Department

■ upon request The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirerhents will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwl® specified, virithin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy ail electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain, proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will' mainlain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (Le., tape. disk, paper, etc.).

(Mj-
Sacurity Reqiarenienls UJh,nQ

PogefiofO Date

V4. Last update 04.M,2018 DdiiDttK Contractor Inttlals
OHHS {nformatlon
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor wiD maintain appropriate authentication and access conlrois to
contractor systems that coiiect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

A. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabiliti^ are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidehtiai Information.

6. If the Contractor wiii be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractpr will maintain a
program' of an Internal process or processes that defines, specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
arxi procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreernents as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be

. completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160:103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any. changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilties that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey wiii be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the suwey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minirrtze any damage or loss resulting from the breach.

. The State shall recover from the Contractor ail costs of resporise and recovery from

Security Requiremefltj ull9jl9
Poge 6 ol 9 7 ll*Jlo •

V4.l.ajt update 04.04.2018 EidtfbltK Contractof Initials
OHMS informalion
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the prlvacy'and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
then the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to, proNrislons of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. | 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for indlvldually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical saf^uards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to.
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the lew! and scope of security requiremerits
established by the State bf New Hampshire, DepartmenI of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https;//wvAv.nh.gov/d6it/vendorAndexhtm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours, of the time that the Contractor learns of Its occurrence. This includes, a
confidential information breach, computer security Incident, or suspected breach
which affects or Includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Harhpshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

6. comply with such' safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent' to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such infonnalion.

V4.LMt update 04.04.2018 '' ExMbilK Contractor Inllele.
OHKS infcrmoilon

Secuilly Requirements
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

8. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and IndlviduaDy
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorrzed persons
during duty hours as well as norf^uty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. oniy authorized End Users may transmit the Confiden^al Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
discloised using appropriate safeguards, as deterniined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved. •

L  understand that their user credentials' (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential -Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. 'DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Induding the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPM.
and other applicable ia^ and Federal regulations'until such time the Confidential Data . -
Is disposed of In accordance with this Contract'.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of (he
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The'Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI. in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with-42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. .In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how (he Contractor will:

1. Identify Inddents;

-  Z Determine If personally identifiable information is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine (he risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and

V4. Usi update 04.04.201S Exhibit K Contractor Ir^'als Ml
DHHS Information

Security Roqufrcmenit y/rV/Pago 0 of 9 Dale f
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and. If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents frpm among different
options, and bear costs associated with the ̂ each notice as weil as any mitigation
measures.

.  Inddents and/or Breaches that Impiicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange Issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

■ DHHSPrfvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for IrTformallon Security Issues:

DHHSInformati6nSecurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications: ^

DHHSInfbrmationSecurityOfrice@dhh&nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4.UslupPato04.04.?O^B ExKlrilK Conl/acU>rln1tl«l).
' DHHS InfonriBtlon
S«curity Re<]u)refnont$

P*g«9of9 Dato
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603>27l-6738 I-800-804-0909

Fox: 603-27I-6I05 TDD Acccxs: 1-800-735-2964

May 10, 2017 i

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into agreements with
the vendors listed in the table below for the provision of evidenced informed substance misuse
prevention direct services to youth and their parents/caregivefs in an amount not to exceed
$635,706 effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2016.
100% Other Funds.

Vendor Vendor

Number

Area Served SFY17

Amount

SFY18

Amount

Total

Contract

Amount

New Hampshire
Teen Institute

166624 Statewide $107,744 $220,058 $327,802

The Upper Room 246053
Rockingham County and
surroundinq communities

$36,811 $90,044 $126,855

The Youth Council 154886

Nashua North and

Nashua South High
Schools

$50,103 $130,946 $181;049

Total: $194,658 $441,048 $635,706

Funds are avaiiabie for State Fiscal Year 2017 and anticipated to be available in State
Fiscal Year 2018 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets wHh the ability to adjust encumbrance between State Fiscal Years without
further approval from the Governor and Executive Council through (he Budget Office if needed
and justified.

05-95-49-491510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL.
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2017 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 49158504 $194,658

Sub'total SFY17 $194,658
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0&.95-92-920510'3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2018 102/500.731 Contracts for Program Services 92058504 $441,048

Sut>-tota!SFY18 $441,048

Total Contract $635,708

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is enter into three (3) agreements with vendors who will
provide substance misuse prevention direct services to youth and related programming for
their parents/caregivers. Targets for this program Include youth between the ages often (10)
and twenty (20) who are at risk for engaging in the misuse of alcohol and illicit use of drugs.
Risk factors Include youth experSencing poor academic performance or behavioral problems, at
school or that have dropped out of school, that are.involved with the juvenile justice system, as
well children whose parents/caregivers are engaged in the active misuse of alcohol and or
illidt drugs.

The opioid epidemic iri New Hampshire led to the passage of Senate Bill 533 (2016)
making additional resources available to the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Prevention. Treatment and Recovery. The Commission identified a portion of the
funding allocated under SB 533 for prevention direct services that target youth, such as those
proposed in this request.

The goal of these contracted, prevention programs is to delay of the onset and use of
alcohol and drugs and to incr^se parental knowledge about the negative effects of substance
misuse has on their child, improving parental knowledge and communication skills and to
increase parental monitoring of their children's behavior and activities. These programs
promote positive youth development with the goal of preventing and reducing the misuse of
alcohol, marijuana, prescription drugs and opioids. , .

Each vendor has chosen an approved evidenced informed pro9ram(s) that includes
education and counseling, as well as Information on healthy activities that can be developed
as alternatives to engaging in the misuse of alcohol and drugs and other risky behaviors.
Programming includes individual or group education and. awareness about the serious and
sometimes deadly consequence of substance misuse and to help students acquire the skills
necessary to resist negative peer pressure for using alcohol or other drugs, their engagement
in the development and promotion of alternative social activities and to assist participating
youth In developing other mechanisms for coping with stressful circumstances in their life at
home or at school. These programs also Involve parents and promote Improved
communication within the family about this topic.

All vendors providing direct prevention services through these contracts are required to
establish ongoing working collaborative relationships with community based organizations
Including, health and social service agencies and schools, as well as the Regional Public
Health Network in their area. The contractors are also required to conduct outreach to youth
and their parents/caregivers to make them aware of these services and how to access them.
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The Department's goal is that through these contracts and other complementary
strategies, the Stale of New Hampshire will experience a reduction In drug rrilsuse prevalence
rates among youth and the related consequences. ^

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, approximately
4,000 youth who are at high risk for developing a substance misuse disorder wiil be not have
access to comprehensive substance misuse prevention services.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds

In the event that Other Funds become no longer aviailable, Genera! Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:V \ j
JOTfrev A.reyA. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht Dtporfmtntcf HtoUh and Human. ScrutocB'MiMion U to join eommunitit* ond/omilU* in
providing Opportunities for citiiens to achieve heatlh and independenct.
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Substance Misuse Prevention Direct

Services RFP-2017-BDAS-OI-Subst

RFPNeme ' ■ RFP NLrmt}er Reviewer Names

\ Anne Mercuri, Child & Metrenal

' HesKh, Tech Team

Bidder Name
Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

AU>y Shocklay. Behavioral Hoatth
PoBcyAnalysl, Tech

NH Teen Institute 400 347

. ̂  Nell Twilched, PuWc Health
■ Administratof, Tech Team

2
' The Upper Room 400 330

^ Valeria Morgan. Prevention Unit
■ Admlnlstratof. Tech Team

The Youth Council 400 336

J!m DaU, Sr. Flrxar^ Director, Div
of Behavioral Health, Cost

^•0 400 0

g Steve Kiander. Financial
' AdmMstrator, OCOM. Cost

400 0
7.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 964A40D3-CEF9-49B0-81F4-9406225ACEA4

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hucn Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www,nh.gov/doit

Dcoi) Goulel

Commtssioner

May 18. 2017

JefErcy A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department ofHealth and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency*s reque^ to enter into contraas with the vendors listed in the table below and
referenced as DolTNo. 2017-093.

Vendor Vendor Number Location

New Hampshire Teen Institute . TED Nashua. NH

The Upper Room 246053 ,  . Derry.NH

The Youth Council I54S86 Nashua, NH

The Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
requests to execute three (3) contracts with the above selected vendors to provide
evidenced informed substance misuse prevention services. The Department's goal is that
through these contracts and other complement^ strategics, the State of New Hampshire
will experience a reduction in drug misuse prevalence rates among youth and relat^
consequences.

The total funding amount of the contract is not to exceed S63 5,706. and is efTeclive upon
(he dale of Govemot and Executive Council approval through June 30,2018.

A copy of this letter should accompany (he Department ofHealth and Human Services'
submission to the Goveroor and Executive Council for approval.

cerely

Denis Goulct

DG/kaf

DoIT #(2017-093
cc: Bruce Smith, IT Mana^r, DotT

"/nnovfff/ve Technologies Todayfor New Hampshire's Tomorrow'
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FORM NUMBER P<37 (vehlon S/8/IS)
Subject: Substance Misuse Prevenlion Direct Services. RfP-2Q 17-BDAS-QI -Subsi-j fYomh Councih

Norice: This ogrecmem and ail of iis attacbnients shall become public upon submission lo Covcraor and
Executive Council for approval Any inronnaiion that is private, conndcntiol or proprietary must
be dearly identified to the agency and agreed lo.in writing prior to signing (he contract.

agreement

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

CENERAL.PROVisiONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name.
Departmentof Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

The Youth Council

1.4 Contractor Address
112 West Pearl Street

Nashua. NH 03060

1.3 Contractor Phone

Number ^
603-598.(703

1.6 Account Number

05*92.920510-33820000'

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2018

1.6 Price Limitation

181,049

1.9 Contracting Ofheer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq. Interim Director of Contracts and
Pfocuttmenf

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603.271-9246

l.n Contractor Signature' 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Sigruitory ■

1:13 Acknowledgement: Slate of , County of {

On Oipril 3*017 . before the undersign^ officer, personal!
proven to be the person whoK name Is signed in block 1. II, and ac
indicated in block 1.12.

Isbofpo^h
y appeared the person identified in block ].l2,orsDijsfaaorily
ciwwiedged that i/he executed this document in the capacity

1.13.1 Slenature^Npiary Pub^cor Justice of the Peace

1.13.2 Name and Title ofNotary or Justice of thcPeaqc D i I «

^"fer J. hou^c. I TobU*^
1.14 State Agency Signature / 1.15 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

S rt>c
1.16 Approval by Che N.H. Depanmertt of Administration, Division orpcrsonnfi) f7/app//co6/e:J

By:' Director. On:

1.17 Approvol by the ARomey General (Fonn. Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

1.18 Approval by the Goy(rt)or and ExeAtivcOjpAcll ( /

By: ^ J On:

Page 1 or4
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FORM NUMDEtl M7 (version S/B/15)
Sutjeec Substance Misuse Prevernlon Direct Swictf. RFp.2Ql7'BDAS»OI»SubstO fVou(h^ounciJ) .

Ng^ilce; ThUas^tmenl oaddl oritsonachmcnisshall Isecome public upon submbtton loCovcntorand
Exeeulivo Council (or approval. Any infonnoilon that Is privote, canndenilol or propi^iary must
fee clearly idenliftcd lo (he ssency agreed (n in Ntrltlng prtot to sluing the contract

~  ̂ ACRCEMENT
The Stale of New Hampshire end ih'e Contractor hereby mutuDlly agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTtnCAnON.
I.t Stale AfiCRQ^ Name
Depaitmeni of Health and Humaa Services

12 Stoic Agency Addfua
129 PIcasan! Street
CoocoMNH 03301-SSS7 "

IJ Contractor Name

The Youth Coundl

1.4 Coolraclor Address

112 West Pear) Street

Nashua, NHD3GC0

1.6 Acanini Number

0&^9&4&491S10-29e9
O5-9S'92-S2O5l0-3262

zl

IJ ContraclorPbofle

Nilmbcr ̂
603.398.1703

0.

1.7 Comptcilon Dale

June 30,2013

KB Prire Llmllxtioo

181.049

1,9 Ccntractifls OHrccr Gar State Aceno*
Joeothan'V. Gflllo, Esq. Inlerim Director of Oomntcis and
Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
602.271.9246

\.U Comiactm Signauffc 1.12 NameoRdTitleofContractorSlGnatory

^]i'7Mhe(k 6^-HUi^,

1.13 AcknowledEMicnt: State of . .County of i lisborOO^W
On dpril 1S| ̂iOlY .before the undersigned oITicer, penonolly oppcarcd the person ideniified in block 1.(2, orteibraaorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in Uoek 1.11, and ocknotvledsed thu s/be executed tlils document In the capacity
iitdtcated in block 1.13. * •

1.13.) Signature^NptoryPubmorJ^ceofthePeace

fSean

inr

I.U2 Name end TtileofNotary or Justice of Peace n i I •

fe-tfer j. -Hou^e. / ic.
1.14 State Agency Signature

Dale:
.^/Wn

1.15 Name end Title ofSioie Agency Stgnaloty

S  h/^
1.16 Approval by ihcN.H. Oepaitmeniof Adminisiraiion, Division of Pmonne) (if oppiicobk)

By. -' Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Atj^omcy General (Form, Substance and Exectition) O/appllcnbh)

On:

iLin
I.II Approval by the Govdfter and ExedbllveCduilcil \1/'6pplicl/ble)

OreBy

Pogc 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYAIE.NTOFCOrrnuCTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The StAle of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, ideittified and more particularly descnb^ in the attached
EXHIBIT A which Is.ifKOrpcrated herein by reference
CServiccs").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision ofihis Agrecmcrn to the
oonirary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire,-If
applicable, this Agreemeni, and all obligstions of the panics
heieunder, shall bccome efTective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approvethis Agreement as indicated in.
block 1.16. unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreemeni shall become effKlive on the date the '
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown In block
I.U CEiTectiveDatc").
3 J If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the evcrit that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to tlte
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete.ali Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.. vJjS

4. conditional NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, ill obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limiuiion, the continuance of payments hereunder. ere
conilngenl upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any'
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a rwluction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement Immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Stale
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block ).£ In ih'e event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified end more ponicularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is Incdrporatcd herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the cotnplcte reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other titan the contract
price.

Page

5 J The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
othenvise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated ambunts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and ootwlihstanding unexpected circumstances. In
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shad comply with ail statutes, lawi, regulations,
and orders of federal; state, county or municipal auUioriiies
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity

■ laws. This may include the requiremem to utilize auxiliary
oids and services to ensure that persons with contmunicnion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech can
communicate with, receive infomtaiion from, and cottvey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws:
6.2 During the term of this Agreemeni. the Contractor shall
not dtscriminate against employees or opplkanis for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, su,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 Ifthis Agreement is funded In any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by die
regulations of the United States Deportment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, rcgulailons and guidelines
as the State ofNew Hampshire or the United Slates issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts Ibr the purpose of

- ascertaining compliance Nvith all rules, regulations and orders,
and (he covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreemeni.

7.PERS0NNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
quaiined to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and.otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aRer the
Completion Dote in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person. Hrm or
corporation with whom it Is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who Is a State
employee or ofllcial, who is materially involved in the
procurement, adminiitrailon or performance of this

2ofd
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Agf«mem. ThU provijion shall survive terminaiioB of chis
AgreemenL
7J The CoWfaciingOfncer specified In block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be Ihe Slate's represemaiive. In the event
of dispute concerning thc'lntcrpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfRcer's decision shall be final for ihe Stale.

6. EVENT OF DEFAULt/R£M£DlC&
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissiora of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ofdefault hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 (allure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to peribrm any other covenant, terrh or condition
of this AgrecmcnL

Upon the occurrence ofany Event of Default, the Sute
may take anyone, or more, or all, of (he following actions:
8.2.1 give ilw Contractor o wririen notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within. In the
absence of a g^ter or lesser specification of time, thiny (30)
days from the date of the notice; ar>d if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of lerminaiibn;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contrect price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during Ihe
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Slate,
determtnes thai the Contractor has cured (he Event of Default
shall never be paid to (he Comractor,
8.2 J set off against any other obligations the Stole may owe to
the Contractor ony damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as brcaehed and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESSX:ONnDCN'nAUTY/

PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in (his Agreement, the word "data" shall mean a))
information and things developed or obtained during the
pcrforrmnce of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charu, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reptcductions, drawings, analyse,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and dMuments.
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under (his Agreement, shall be Ihe property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Sute upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreemeni for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9I-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of (he State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the evem of an early teonination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Serrices, the Contractor shall deliver to the Controaing
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a report (Termination RcpOft") describing in
detail all Services perform^, and (he contract pirice earned, to
and including the ̂ te of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to (hose of any Final Repon
described in (he aiuched EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor Is in all
respects en independent contractor, and is neither en agent itor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofilcers. employees, agents or members shall have.authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by (he State to its employee^

12. ASSICNMEM/DELECATION/SyBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior w-ritten notice and
consent of (he Slate. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. indemnification. The Comractor shall defend,

'indemnify and hold harmless the Suie, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by (lie
State, its officers and employees; and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Stale, its oflicers
and employees, by or on behalfof any person, on account of,
bosed or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) (he acts or omissions of the
Controclor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, noihing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
' reserved to the Stole. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall.

survive the termination of this Agreement.

M. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at Its sole expense, obtain and
mainuin in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of b^ily injury, death or property damage, in artxtunts
of not less than SI.Q00,000per occurrence and S2,000.000
aggregate: and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9J2, herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph U.l herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by (be N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Conductor Initials aDaicĝ
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14J The Conmtdor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identifted in block. i.9v or hU or her successor, a c«rtif>c«;e(s)
of insurance fornll irtsurincc required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting CfTiccr
identifted tn block 1.9, or his or her successor, certlflcatefs) of
Insurance for all rcnewal(s)ofinsur8nce required under this
Agrcemem tto later than thiny (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificatcis) of
insurance end any renewals thereof shall be attached and ore
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
Insurance shall contain a douse requiring the insurer to
provide the ContrMing Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior wrinen
notice of cancellation or modincaiion of the policy. ■

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
) 5.1 By signingihisagreemeni. the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt.fhom, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter ISUA
C'Worktn'Cotnptnsaiion").
fS.2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontraaor or assignee to secure
and (ttaintain. paymettt of Woritets'Compettsation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
uodertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Ccniracting Ofncer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable icnewaKs) thereof, which shall be attached end are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible forpaymeni.ofony Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other citum or benefit for Contractor, or
any wbcontracior or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of (he
Services under this Agreement.

16. VVAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any prDvisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Deftsult, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express

■failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and al I of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any noOce by a party hereto to the other pa^
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certifitd mall, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Oflice addressed to the ponies at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by art instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Exnurive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy. <

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Sutc ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording t»ed in this A^eement
is the wording chosen by the parties'to express their mutual
intent, and op rule of construction shaJI be applied against or
in ftvor ofony party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agrectttent shall not be'
corutrued to confer any such benefiL

21. HEADI.NGS. The headings throughout (he Agreement
are for raference purposes only, ond (he words contained
therein shall In no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
previsions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL RROVISIO.NS. Addirional provisions set
fonh in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVCRA61L1TY. Inihe event any of (he provisions of
this Agreement are held by a couhofcompetent jun'sdicilon to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining,
provisions of this Agreement will remain In full foicc and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may -
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parlies, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 ofd
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Now Hempohhe Deportment of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services (

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or seNices within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative' action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services.descrlbed herein, the State ̂Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under, this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall.provide sen/ices to youth, ages ten (10) to twenty (20). who are in
the Institute of Medicine (lOM) Prevention Classification categories of selective or
indicated and provide parent education for parents/caregivers of the targeted
population, statewide.

' 1.4. The Contractor must maintain necessary coordination with'the Regional Public Health
Networks and public and prrvate agencies providing services to the target population
and must maintain, a depth of knowledge on community services agerwes that are
available to youth and parents/caregivers including but not limited to mental health
providers, primary care providers, alcohol and. other drug prevention, treatment and
recovery services, juvenile diversion network programs, and housing services.

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure all funded schools will utilize a unlver^dy applied
evidence based screening too! for youth referred to the program. The evidenced
based, screening tool .must be approved by the Department and all staff utilizing the
screening tool receives appropn'ate training in its use and utility.

'  1.6.' the Contractor shall ensure appropriate referrals to community providers as indicated
by. the Individual screening. The contractor shall develop and maintain protocols for
referrals to appropriate providers and have such protocols available to the Department

. upon Inspection

1.7. The Contractor shall not use funding received .under this contract for the purposes of
capacity building nor shall funding be used to supplant other programs or services. -

1.6. llie Contractor shall have current knowledge of how to maintain funding separate
streams of funding for this and other projects. '

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide evidenced Informed substance misuse prevention direct
sendees that are designed for targeted populations with the goals of reducing risk
factors while enhancing protective factors to positively impact healthy decisions around
the use of substances and increase knowledge of the consequences of substance
misuse and abuse.

2.2. Project Success

The Contractor shall ensure It administers the student assistance program modeled
after Project Success and Its program components to youth with a focus on youth at
higher risk for'developing a substance use disorder and their parents/caregivers..

The Youih Council . ConVaclof Initials
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New Hsmpehlre Depertnient of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

ExhIbltA

2.3. Project Success components include:

2.3.1. individual screening of youth referred to the program using an evidenced based
screening tool approved by the Department;

2.3.2. Referral to appropriate community providers as indicated by the Individual
screening. The Contractor shall work with the school to maintain/develop
protocols for referrals to the appropriate provider;

Z3.3. Conduct individual and'group sessions. ' .

2.3.3.1. • The Contractor shall conduct individual support sesstons with the purpose
Of crisis intervention or to motivate students to participate in Project
Success groups.

2.3.3.2. The Contractor shall conduct group support sessions based on the
Project Success social learning model with the general purpose of:

2.3.3.2.1. Helping youth Identify and resist social and sHuatlonal pressures
to use substances;

2.3.3.2.2. Correct mlsperceptions about the prevalence and acceptability of .
substance use:

2.3.3.2.3. Increase knowledge of the consequences of adolescent
substance use;

2.13.2.4. Teach and provide opportunities to practice resistance and coping

skills; and

2.3.3.2.5. Identify barriers to using the skills or adopting healthy altitudes
and choices regarding substances..

2.3.3.3. There are ten (10) different groups that make up the Project Success
model that are outlined in the Implementation Manual that will be supplied
by the Department to the Contractor.

2.3.3.4. If not already existing, both the Newcomers Group and the Children of
Substance Misusing Parents/Caregivers shall begin In year one (1) of the
grant vrith recrultmenl and facilitation of the other eight (8) groups
beginning In year two (2).

2.4. The Contractor shall provide parcnt/caregiver education services with topics that
include, but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Developmental information regarding the adolescent brain and how the use of
substances affect the developing brain;

2.4.2. Skills for communicating with teens; and

2.4.3. How perception of disapproval and Increased parental monitoring Impacts use by
adolescents.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide alcohol and other drug prevention education to students
during transitional yeare such as those in the 7" or 9"* grades. The Contrector shall
seek approval for the evidenced-based Prevention Education Currlculurri, such as
Profect Wert. it will use.

TTiC Youtn Coimdl Contraclor tnttiabii
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New Hempshlro Department of Keatth and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

Exhibit A

2.6. The Coniractor shall conduct a minimum of three (3) school and/or community
-  centered universal strategies such as Red Ribbon Week for each year of funding
under this contract. The Contractor may utilize existing school groups arxi community
resources to enhance and meet this requirement

2.7. The Contractor shall enhance Its program through the utilization of marketing ai^
media, tools. This work shall be done in conjunction with the work being done at the
state level through, the Partnership, for a Drug Free NH. the Regional Public Health
Network, and local Drug Free Community Grantees. The contractor may utilize
existing school groups and/or comrhunity resources, to enhance and meet this
requirement.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure equal access to ail programs and services funded by this
. contract and provide reasonable accommodations as necessary for those participants
facing heallh disparities: Accommodations may include:

2.8.1. Interpreter services;

2.8.2. Materials, In a varied format,

2.8.3. Child care or access to affordable child care,

2.8.4. Transportation or as^tance with access to affordable and accessible
transportation.

L  Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain dedicated student assl^ance staff that meets with the
following standards:

3.1.1. There must be one (1) full time equivalent student assistance program staff person
to every one thousand (1,000) students. This can be prorated for schools serving
less than one thousand (1,000) students. If the school is under one thousand
(1 .ODD) students the staff person must be available a minimum of two (2) days per
week.

3.1.2. The student assistance program counselor must obtain their certificate as. a
Certified Prevention Specialist (CPS) within one (i) year of assuming the position.
If the staff member is unable to obtain their CPS within the year, a plan vMth a
proposed timeline for completion is required within, thirty (30) days after the end of
the first of the year of employment.

3.1.3. The Cofttractor shall maintain up-to-date records and documentation of bll
individuals requiring licenses and/or certifications and make available to the
Department upon request.

3.1.4. All student assistance program staff shall receive appropriate tralning| in the Project
Success mode! by Individual(s) authorized by the program developer or designee.

3.1.5:' The Contractor shall ensure all staff assigned to this contract has appropriate
training, education, experience, and, orientation to fuifil! the requirements of the
positions (hey hold.

3.1.6. The Contractor shall ensure the Student Assistance Program, counselor Vkrill
participate in mandatory trainings. v .

The YolJt^ Council CwMractof rnJlioIi Ml
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New H^pshlre Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

Exhibit A

4. Delegation and Subcontractors
4.1. Identification and Approval

4.1.1. The Contractor shall identify any and all subcontractors to be utilized in fulfillment
of its contractual responsibilities.

4.1.2. DHHS reserves the right to accept or reject the use of any subcontractor.

5. Performance Measures/Outcomes

5.1. As a resutt of participating In the programs and services funded by this contract
participants shall, at a minimum, demonstrate;

5.1:1. Increase in perception of harm/risk of the use of substances;

5.1.2. Increase in perception of peer or parental/car^iver disapproval on the use of
substances;

5.1.3. Increase in parental efficacy; and

5.1.4. Increase in parental communication and monitoring.

6. Deliverables/Reporting Requirements

6.1. Deliverables

6.1.1. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the evidenced based saeening too) within

thirty (30) days after its selection.

6.1.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with the name of the evidenced

based Prevention Education Curriculum it is providing.

6.1.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with its training and developrT>ent
plan for program staff and volunteers upon request by the Department.

6.1.4. The Contractor shall evaluate current school policies related to alcohol and other '

drugs and move toward Best Practice School Policies using the Top 5 document
developed by the Department. The Top 5 document will be provided to the

Contractor by the Department.

6.1.5. The Contractor shall demonstrate its progress In moving toward a model school
policy for alcohol and other drugs upon request by the Department. .

6.1.6. The Contractor shall work with the Department and the Department's contracted
training and technical assistar>ce entity to ensure the core elements the student

assistance program modeled after Project Success will be implemented with

fidelity and seek approval from the Department on adaptations to the model.

6.2. Reporting Requirements

6.2.1. The Contractor, as well as any sub<»ntractor, shall, in addition to their own

repohing and evaluation requirements, comply with the Department's
-  requirements which includes: ' . '

nte YouffiCound Contractor InlUslj
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Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

Exhibit A

6.2.1.1. Adherence to the evaluation design and administration as supplied by the
Department, including. Individual participant evaluation and program
evaluation;

' 6.2.1.2. Ensure consent from, program participants for evaluation In compliance
with the Department's policies and protocols; and

6.2.1.3. Ensure a seventy-five percent (75%).response rate from participants.

6.2.2. The Contractor shall administer a pre and post survey to individuals participating
In group sessions at the beginning and end of the group.

6.2.3. The Contractor shall administer the high school Youth Risk Behavior Survey

(YRBS) Iri the Spring of 2017 and administer a whole school sunrey for grades 9
through 12 developed by the Department in the Spring of 2018.

6.2.4. The Contractor shall ensure if a middle school Is funded by this contract and the

middle, school does not conduct the middle school YRBS, rt will admlnistef a

surv^ developed by-the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Sen/ices to the 7th and 8th
grades In the Spring of 2017 and in the Sprtrtg of 2016.

6.2.5. The Contractor shall work closely with the Department and the NH Center for

Excellence to use this data and other data sources to drive continuous quality

improvement.

6.2.6. Without limiting the generality of any other provisions of this agreement, the

Contractor shall provide periodic or special reports required by the Department.

6.2.7. Wrthout limiting the generality of any other provisions of this agreement, the
.  Contractor shall cooperate fully with, and answer all questions of representatives

of the Department conducting any periodic or special review of the performance

of the Contractor or any inspection of the facilities of the Contractor.

6.2.8. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with all data reporting requirements
Including, but not limited to;

6.2.8.1.' The ability to communicate and submit required reports via email.

6.2.6.2. The ability to submit the following reports In formats approved and/or
. provided by the Department:

6.2.8.2.1. Enter and complete monthly data reporting in the New Hampshire

Prevention Web Information Technology System (P-WITS) within .
twenty (20)' working days of the end of the previous month, e.g.
July data will be' entered fully by August 20'*;

6.2.8.2.2. Submit monthly expenditure reports for reimbursement of costs

associated with contract activities by the 20" business day
following the end of the previous month.

6.2.6. All data related exchanges, standards, policjes, systems etc. may. at the sole
discretion of the Department, be reviewed by the Department and/or the

The Vouth CoukU ' ContnclDT IniSali
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Now Ham^hJre Deparlfnent of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

Exhibit A

Department of Information Technology (Doll) to assess conformance with
Department and DolT Information security/privacy standards.

6.2.9.1. The Contractor agrees to remedy, to the satisfaction of the Department
•and/or DolT, any substantial non,•conformance Identified.

6.3. Site Vlstts/inspsctlons

6.3.1. The Contractor shall allow a team authorized by the Department to conduct bi
annual site reviews that shall Include program staff, the Contractor or designs,
the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, and a representative of the New
Hampshire Center for Excellence If appropriate.

6.3.2. In order to assure systems are adequate to provide the contracted ser>^ces, this
site visit shall review, at a minimum, the Contractor's:

6.3.2.1. Systems of governance,

6.3.2.2. Administration.

6.3.2.3. Data collection and submission.

Policies for ensuring participant confidentiality, and

6.3.2.4. Financial management.

6.3.3. The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team If
contracted services are found to be not provided in,accordance with this contract.

6.3.4. The Department may, as needed, inspect ar\d evaluate the Contractor's
books/ledgers to ensure that funds are separately maintained.

6.3.5. • The Contractor shall provide documented proof that all staff conducting
screening has been trained in the tool upon request by the Department

6.3.6. The Contractor shall demonstrate, upon request by the Department, that
programs funded by this contract maintain minimum written documentation and
guidelines that Include, but are not limited to:

6.3.6.1. Written Student Assistance referral process;

6.3.6.2. Written protocols for ensuring the protection of students right to
confidentiality In compliance with 42 CFR part 2;

6.3.6.3. Letter to Parenls/Caregivers to inform of any evaluation and the option
to have their child opt of the evaluation;

6.3.6.4. Confidential release of Information form as necessary;

6.3.6.5. the Youth Councillntake or screening/information form; '

6.3.6.6. Documentation of contact with participants, parents or others Involved In
the student assistance program via New Hampshire Prevention Web
Information Technology System (P-WITS) reporting:

6.3.8.7. Written list of community resources available to children and their
^mllles; and

r

Youth Coundl Contractof Inlllalj
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New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Setytces
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Exhibit A

6.3.6.8. Documentation that programming Is culturally and linguistically
appropriate for parltcipants and that equal access Is provided to
irtdlviduals facing behavioral health disparities.

TheVoutnCounoQ ContfBciof Inliiala
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New Hampshire Oopartment of Health and Human Gervlooa
Substarrca.KDsuse Provention Direct Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Department shall pay the Contractor an arnoun) not to exceed the Pilce Limitation
on Form P-37, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant tp Exhibit
A, Scope of Services.

2. Funding for this contract te.100% Other Funds (Governor's Commission on Alcohol and
other Drug Prevention, Treatment, and Recovery).

3. The Contractor shall provide the services In Exhibit A, Sco^ of Services, in compliance
with funding requirements.

4: Payment for Services shall be made as foRows:

4.1. The Contractor shaQ submit monthly invoices and any attendarit reports by the
IS^ofeachmomh.

4.2. Expenses shall be reported for reimbursement by budget line Item in accordance
with Exhibit B-1 and Exhibit B-2 with Invoice template supplied by the State.

4.3. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of
receipt of Invoices and reports for contract services provided pursuant to this
Agreement.

4.4. Invoices and reports identified In Section 4 shall be submltted.to:

Department of Health and Human Services

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld parading receipt of required reports or documenta^on as
identified In Exhibit A, Scope of Sen/ices.

6. A final payment request shall be su^itted no later than forty (40) days after the end of
the contract Failure to submit the Rnandal Report, and accompanying documentation,

-  could result In norvpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld. In whole or In part, In the event of noncompliance
wtth any State or Federal law, rule, or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if
the said services have not been compfeted in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

.8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be
made tjy written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval
of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit B - Methods ond Conditions Precedent to Foment Conlmctor initials
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REVISIONS TO QENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the. General Provisions of this contract. Condctional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as foiiows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ell obligation's of the State
heraunder. Inctudlrig without limrtatlon. the continuance of payments, in wt^ole or irv part,
urider this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
Including any subsequent changes to the appropr'tatlon or availabllity of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availat)lli1y of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Senrices provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services. In whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or av^lable funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
Slate shall have the right to withhold payment until such furids become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immedialety upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction. termiQation or modification.
The State shall riot be required to transfer funds from any other source or account Into the
Account(&) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
foilo^ng language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any lime for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early terminatiof>. the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termir^at'cn, develop and submit to the State e Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present end future needs of clients

.. . receiving.services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Slate and shall promptly provide deta'iled
information to-support the TransiOon Plan including, but not limrted to. any informalion a
data requested by the Slate related to the termination of the Agreerrient and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongc^ng communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested. • ^

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transilloned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 the Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include ;the proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to (he continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

EiNM C-1 - Rtvlslona lo S'wixJard Provisions Conl/s'cto/ Inflieb
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SPECIAL PROVIStONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for senrices provided to eligible ■
individudls and. in the (urtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby'covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws; If the Contractor is permined to determine the eligibilKy
.  of individuals such etiglbliity determlnation.shaD be made In accordance with epplicable federal end

state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and IVIanner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Departmmt. the Contractor
'  shaO rhaintein a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all

information necessary to support en eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ail fbnms and documentation

■  regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Heartnga: The Contractor understands that all appHcants for services hereunder. as welt as
Individuals declared irveligibte have a right to a felr hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees thai aH applicants for sennces shall be peimitled to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-appRcant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. GratuHfes or Kickbacks: the Contractor agrees that KIs a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Wort( detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreerr^nt if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by

- any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor..

E. Retroactlvo Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In arty .
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly urxierstood ar>d agreed by the parties

' hereto, that no payments wQI be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any indlNHduel prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services, or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regul8tions)'priar to a delenminBlion that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deerrted to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rale
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to a^ure the quality of such senrice, or at e
rate which exceeds the rate charged-by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the temn of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure. Report hereunder, the Department shell determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment

' in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
-  or other third party funders. the Department may elect to;

7.1. Renegotiate the rates lor payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

Eir^lbU C - speosi Provdicns Comrgctw Ir^ttsh
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excew payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment ahall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is .
permitted' to det^lne the ellgibiUiy of individuals for services, the Contractor ̂ rees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any indlvkJuai who is found by the Department to be ineQgible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CGNFIOEMTIALITY:

8. Matntenanco of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records dunr^ (he CorMract Period;
6.1. Fiscal Records; books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and alt
income received or collected by the Conlractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently'end
property reflect all such costs arxJ expenses, and which are acceptable to the Departrnenl, and
to (ixlude. without'timitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs sui^ as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, r^uisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, tabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requosted or required by Ihe
Depaitmcnl

$.2. Statistical Records; Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (including aD forms requir^ to determine eiigibility for each such r^pient). retards
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
•payment for such services.

'  8.3. fiA^lcal Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by Ihe Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year, it is recommended that ihe report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular "A.133. "Audits of Slates. Local Oovernments.-and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of-Standards for Audit of Govarnmenlal Organizations.
Programs. Activilies and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During Ihe term of this Contract and the period for fetenlion hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, exceqits and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities; tn addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligatlorts of the Contract, It Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state

'  or federal aud'it exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under Ihe
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All Information, reports, and records rnalntained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shell be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connectrori with their official duties and for pumoses
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by,any party of any Information corwernmg a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the D.epartment or ihe Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on writlen consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

p«Qc2e(5 Dae.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the foQowing
•  times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports; Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowabte expenses incurred by the Cor^tractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information 'as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rete of payment hereunder. Such Firiancial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A llnal report shall be submitted within ihl^ (30) days after the end of the term
of (his Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
corttain a summary statement of progress toward, goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. ComptetJbn.of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided,for in the Contract and upon payment of the price fimrtation
hereunder. the Contract and atl the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed efter the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the tenmination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final E)^nditure Report the Department.shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct.the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting frorn ihe performahce of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New IHampshire, Department of Health end Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of Nevy Hampshire and/or such other fur>ding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: AD materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shaD have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
disthbulion or use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and ail original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contracl without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Comptlanco with laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall .comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the ■
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such fadlily. tf any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and v^ll at all limes comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the

' Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facUKies shall
comply with ail rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire f^arshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shaU be In conformance with tocal building end zoning codes, by
laws and regulatichs.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has

. received a single award of 5500.000 or more. If the feciplenl receives 525,000 or more and has 50 or

CxJ^ibttC-SpedilPiowislons Contndor iiMUal}

wvn* Paps 3 of S Oota ^//



DocuSign Envelope ID: 964A40D3-CEF9-49B0-81F4-9406225ACEA4

New Hampshire Depactmenl of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit en EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR certifying that its EEOP is on Trie. For redptents receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are reqinred to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: hnpi/AAiww.ojp.usdoi/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP}: As clarified by Executive Order 13166. improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrirrtination on the basis of firnited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compfiance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Greets Act of 1966 artd Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 19^. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Conlractor Employee Whistleblowcr Protections; The
foDowjng shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150.000)-

Contractor Employee Whistleblower rigkts and Requirement To Inform employees of
WHiSTlJEeLCNVER RKSI^S (SEP2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
ard remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whtsUebiower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by.section 828 of the National Defense Authorfzatlon Act for Ftscal Year 2013 (Pub. L..
1-12-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform Its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this dause, including this paragraph (c). In an
subcontracts over the slmprified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DKHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shell retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shallevaluatethe subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
furvrtion($). Tt\is is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibtlities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's p^ormance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the extractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospedive subcontractor's abifity to perform the activttles, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
' responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's

.  performance Is'not adequate
19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performonce on an ongoing basis

EitiiWt C - SpedeJ Provteiom Cont/ocler inHlalJ
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19.4. Provide 1o DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, et its discretion, review and approve ell subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DERN1TI0NS

As'used in the Contract, the rollowing terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct end indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entiUed 'Finandal Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
actrvilies of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Corrtract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Contractor Is to provide to eligible indrviduals hereunder. shall meari that
period of time or that specified activity determin^ by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAUSTATE l-AW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, and politiw. etc. are
referred to In.tlie Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
(hey may be emended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrativo Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of imptementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder. - .

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FtJNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existir^g'federal funds avaDable for these services.

Exhlbii C - S^dal Pmvfeioni ■ Conuscior IrAisis

ovimi Pjgt 5 or 6 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9S4A40D3-CEF9-49B0-81F4-9406225ACEA4

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Setvicea
Exhibit C*1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditiohal Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as foDows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement;
Notwithstanding any provision of tr>ls Agreement to (he contrary, ail obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement arc contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds ̂ ected-by
eny state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modules the appropriation or aNmitability at funding for this Agreement artd the Scope of
Services provided In £)dtibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or avaHable funds. In
(he event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have, the right to withhold payment until such furids become available, (fever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immedialely upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) iderttined in block 1.6 of Ihe General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, (n the everri funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subpamgraph 10 of the Gerreral Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
this State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement;

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit' to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement,- including but not limited to. Identi^ng the present and future needs of clients

... . receiving services under the Agreement and estabfishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with (he Slate and shall promptly provide detailed
Wormation to support the Transition Plan including^ but rtol limited to. any Information or
data requested by the Slate related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication end revisions of (he Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiwng
seMces under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor, shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the TransHiort-Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuats.
about the transition. The Contractor-shall include the proposed communicatiorvs In its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described abowe.

3. The Departr7>ent reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, sut^ect
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory perforrnance of services and approve! by the
Governor end Executive Council.

EiNUl C-1 - Revlalons to SKndinl Provisions ' Contrsclor trtfUata
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CENTIRCATION REGARDING DRUfrFREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provistons egrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151'5160 of the Drug-Free Worttplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. SubUlte D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), end further agrees to have tt^ Contractor's representative, as identrfied in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 dfthe General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implemeriting Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 13S6 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. SubtHle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were emended and pubDshed as Part 11 of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-
.contrectors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free worl^place. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certificatbn to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shell be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debanment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissiorier
NH Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices

.  129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that U will or will'cominue to provide a daig-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's -
workplace end specifying the actions that will be taken against emptoyees for violation of such
prohibition;

■  1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In theworkplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for dnjg abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be errgaged in the performance of the grarrt be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the gram, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a vlotalion of a criminal drug ■

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction:

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 front an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EiWbli D - CortlAcaJlon roflarUing On^g Frso Ccntracior i/riaait
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
Idendrication numt)er(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. ■ TaKlng one of the foltowing actions, within-30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehdbilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such empbyee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved (or such purposes by a Federal. State, or local heaRh.
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implcmentalionof pafagraphs 1.1. 1.2,1.3.1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the slle(s) for the performance of work done In .
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, rip code) (list each locatton)

/Off

Check □ if there are vvorkplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name:

^jibh-on • ^-  L' ft. II
Date ' ■

Title. e>^eru1\ir

EiNWl 0 - CtniOufcin regarding Drug Free Contrsctor tniBali
Wciltptacs Reqi4r«fnenb
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CERTIFICATION REQARDINS LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply.with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 13S2. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representaVrve. as identiftedin Sedions i.11
end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforterrrent Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicald Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any'Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub^rantee or sutxontractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or empbyee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection v/ith XYva
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
coritractof], (he undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form ILL. (Discbsure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its instructbns. attached and identified as'Standard Exhibit E-L)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreemer\ts) and that all &ul>-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This cortificab'on is a material representatbn of fact upon which reliance was placed when (his transactbn
' was made or entered Into. Submission of this certiflcatbn is a prerequbite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than SIO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for,
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Hjnln ,

Extribh E - CtrtttcAtlon Rs^arding Lobbying Contractor liVtiab,
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CERTinCATION REGARDING DEBARMEMT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President Exe'tuiive Order 12549 and AS CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the folldwing
Certificalion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submittino this proposal (contract), the prospect'rve primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below. .

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation In this covered transaction, ff necessary, the prospective participant shall submit en
explanation of why it cannot provide the certificstion. The cediricalion or explanation will be
cortsidered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determlnalionwhetherloenterintothlstransaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification'or an e)q)lanaticn shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, OHMS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospectNe primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant ieams '
that its certifrcation was errorieous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' "debarred," 'suspended.' 'ineligible.' 'lower lief covered
transaction,' "particlpanl.* 'person,' "primary covered transaction.' 'principal,' 'proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the rneanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules rmplemenling Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the

-  .attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees t>y submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, susperided. declared ineligible, or volurMaiily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. Tt^e prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Oebarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solidtations for lower tier covered-transactions.

B. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certiticalion of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not deterred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may .
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurernent List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to renider in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

EtfilWI F - CenXiC4iIon Rtgirdlng OeSsnneni, Suspcmton Conu jctor liiliab
And Omer RoiponsIbSity Mjiiora
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■  Intohnation of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normalty possessed by a prudent
pmon in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participarii In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voIuntarOy excluded from participation in this transaction.'in
addition to other rem^ies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauR.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and Its .
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year pertod preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

. a ctvil judgment render^ against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State ar\t'(irust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, Ivlbery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently IrxJicted for otherwise crtminaJly or civilty charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or io^) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certrficatron; and '

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appllcatlonrproposal had one or more putilic
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable lb certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best o( Us knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or ̂

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective fower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting (his proposal (contract) that It will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inetiglbllity, arid
Volunlafy Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification in aU lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name;

Date Namqf.
Tilled

Exnibllf-CfnlficatlonRsgi/SlngOo&srnient. Siaptrulbn Contnctor irttiab
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CgRTIFICATION OF COWPUANCE WITH REQUIRCMEMT8 PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMlNATiON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASeO ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiricatlon:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal ncndiscrimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control ar^d Safe Streets Ad of 1958 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
redpients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
(he delivery of services or benefits, on (he basis of race, color, religion, national ohgin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal-Emptoyment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civll rights obrrgations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal Ending under ̂ Is
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on Ihe basis of race, color, religion, national origm, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; ''

• the CivO Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 20b0d. which prohibits recipients of federal fmandal
assistance from discrimlr>3ting on the basis of race, color, or nallonal origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.(29 U.SC. Section 794). which prohibits redpients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment ar^d the delivery of
serwces or benefits,-in any program or activity;

•the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990(42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
. government services, public accommodations, commercial fadlities. and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683.1685-86), which prohibits
disaimlnation or\ the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs: .

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Scdlons 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Indude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pL 42
(U.S. Department of-Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Empjoyment Opportunity; Polides
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. Department of Justice -Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): and Whlstleblower proledions 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, ertaded January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whlstleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection wKh federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of (act upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards Ihe grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

EiNWl G / i
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In the event a Federal or State couh or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wiD forward a copy of the flnding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contrecdng agency or divislon'withln Ihe Department of Health end Human Services. ar>d
to Ihe Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor tdentiTted in Section t .3 o1 the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Sectbns 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certlflMtion:

I. By signing and submhUng this proposal (cor\tract) ttw Corvtractor agrees t^compty with the provlslor^s
Indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Date

. Canlfsdof IftSiHi X''2Cl •
Cw«SCM«M «f C«T*k«w«'«i9t MQjtwo OTnanrtgte riontftcnvMaMX f vjii Tr«MT«net F»n.BnM Oy^'unenj
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CERTIFICATION REGARDINQ ENVIRONMEWTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 19S4
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of ar^ indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library senrices to children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to childron's services provided in private residences, tecilities furxfed solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faciiittes used for Inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in (he Imposllion of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an admtnislraUve compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identifiad in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts lo comply
witti all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of id94.

Contractor Name:

□ate NfH: &lttLuU-^
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Envlionmtfltal Todacco ^oka / *7cuJOHKSnwrw PagoloH Dae ^7/? ' '



DocuSign Envelope ID; 964A40D3-CEF9-49B0-81F4-9406225ACEA4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLfTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identiftable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected-health (nformalk>n under this Agreement and "Cpvered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Deflnttions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. ' ,

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 ofTille 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of TitJa 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record.Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record sef
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreoatlon' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

\

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

- 2009.

h. 'HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public L^w
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFRSectlon 164.501(g).

J. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, prorhulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Informatlon' shatl have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Information created or received by
. Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^

Exni&ill Centrutor tniOab
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I. 'Reauifed bv Lav/ shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretafv''shaD mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule* shajl mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health. Information' means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
um^adable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
8 standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

AcL

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement Further, Business Associate, including but riot limited to all
(ts directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit

-  PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Ruts.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity. ,

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to maKing any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for Vi^ich it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA. Privacy, Security, and Breach NotificBtion
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, wi^out first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 E^Oilbll) Contractor lnCti4l3
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. -If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosure or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the.Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shaR not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security .safeguards.

<3) ObHaations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected

:  health Information riot provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured -
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

' b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shail include. but not be
limited to: '

0 The nature and extent of the protected health'Information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-fdentification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

6. Whether the protected health informatioh was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Assodate sha.ll complete the risk assessment vvithin 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
^  Breach Notification Rule.

d. . Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and reco^s relatirig to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on beh^f of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall requjre all of Hs business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 EcNbiM Contrador InitiAb.
Health Inauraftco PortaDiCiy Act . .
Buslnoss Aswdaie Agreement
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate'shal) make available during normal business hours at'Its offices all .
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, lor purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered EntHy.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ter\ (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclpsures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shaU have the

'  responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Indivlduars request to Covered Entity would.cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the Indtvidual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the .
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and lirhit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasibie. for so long as Business .
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in hs sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes'or llmitatlon(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance v4th 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. ' Covered Entity shad prorhptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of pennission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shail promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or '
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The .Covered Entity may either immedlatefy
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and ReQulatorv References. All terms used, but not othenvise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit 1. to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parlies agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.
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SeqreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhitvt I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of^thorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

' l(y CcLAncU
Naroe of the Contractor

k Ltrij
Sigr^ture of-Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAICOMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greyer than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive-compensation arxl associated first*tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial awards below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compen$atior> Information}, the
Department of Health and Human ScrvtMS (OMHS) must report the following information for any
siAaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporiing requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Prlndpfe place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the enUly pUNS U)
10. Total compensation and names of the top Five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporiing to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the mor\th. plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109'282 and Public 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following CertiTication:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Senrlces and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Rnancial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

nlliln ^Irril

Exhibit J - Ccniftution Regarding ins Fedonl Funding Contrsdor [nidalx.
AccouftUWUty And Tranipsfthcy Ad (FFATA) CompBancs
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FORMA .

As (he Contractor Identifled in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that (he responses to the
' below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is; ^
2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants. and/or cooperative agreerrients; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grents. subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

lX NO YES

If the answer to U2 above Is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES. please anss^r the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or orgartization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to ff3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensaibn of the Hvc most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:.

Name:.

Name:.

Name:.

Name:

Amount

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount

CuoxwmoTO
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